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The Stock Exchunge of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the Gontents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any Hubility whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this announcement,
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(Stock code: 508) (Stock code: 025)
MAJOR TRANSACTION DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

FURTHER DELAY IN DESPATCH OF CIRCULAR

CIHL and CiTL have made an application to the Stock Exchange for a further extension of time for despatch of
their respective circulars to their respective shareholders to a date on or before 7th February, 2007.

Reference is made to the announcement jointly made by Chevalier International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”) and
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (“CiTL") dated 1st December, 2006 (the “Joint Announcement”) in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of SEL (the “Acquisition”) and the announcement made by CIHL and
CiTL dated 21st December, 2006 (the “Second Announcement™) in relation to the delay in despatch of their
respective circulars in relation to the Acquisition to their respective shareholders. Capitalised terms used in this
announcement shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Joint Announcement unless the context herein
requires otherwise.

The Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction for CIHL and a major transaction for CiTL under the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14.38 of the Listing Rules, both CIHL and CiTL are required to despatch a circular to their
respective shareholders within 21 days after publication of the Joint Announcement, which is on or before 22nd
December, 2006. As disclosed in the Second Announcement, the reporting accountants required more time to
complete the field work in relation to the financial information on SEL Group for the three years and eleven months
ended 30th November, 2006 for the purpose of preparing the accountants’ report on SEL Group, and therefore CIHL
and CiTL applied for an extension of time to despatch their respective circulars to their respective shareholders from
on or before 22nd December, 2006 to a date on or before 22nd January, 2007. As at the date of this announcement,
the reporting accountants have completed the field work and are finalising the accountants' report on SEL Group for
inclusion in the circulars of each of CIHL and CiTL. In the circumstances, CIHL and CiTL have applied to the
Stock Exchange for a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 14.38 of the Listing Rules and for a further extension
of time for despatch of their respective circulars to their respective shareholders to a date on or before 7th February,
2007.

By Order of the Board of By Order of the Board of
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching Chow Yei Ching
Chairman Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22nd January, 2007

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of CiTL comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Fung Pak Kwan, Mr.
Kuwok Hoi Sang, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as executive directors and Mr.
Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as independent non-executive directors.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of CIHL comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr.
Fung Pak Kwan, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Tam Kwok Wing, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, and Mr. Ho Chung Leung as
executive directors and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Li Kwok Heem, John and Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George as
independent non-executive directors.

*  for identification only

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.




THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If vou are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you
should consult your licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional

accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or tramnsferred all your shares in Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, you
should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or the transferee or to the bank, licensed
securities dealer through whom the sale or transter was effected for transmission to the

purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole

or any part of the contents of this circular.
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings as set out below unless
the context requires otherwise:

"Acquisition” the proposed acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of SEL

“Additional Borrowing” an amount up to HKS$IL5 million which may be
borrowed by SEL Group from third parties or the
Company (if the Company offers more favourable
terms of finance) solely for the capital expenditure of
new outlets subject to the terms of the Agreement

“Audited Accounts” the audited consolidated balance sheet of CL Holdings
and the audited consolidated profit and loss account of
cach company in SEL Group for the relevant financial
year and all notes thereto and the auditors’ and the
directors’ reports relating to such accounts

“Agreement” the share purchase agreement regarding all the issued
shares of SEL dated 25 November 2006 entered into
between the Company and the Vendor

“Board” the board of Directors
; “Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which
| banks are generally open for banking business in Hong
Kong
“BVI” the British Virgin Islands
“CIHL” Chevalier International Holdings Limited, an exempted

company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange

“CIHL Board” the board of directors of CIHL

“CL Holdings” CL Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, the holding company of all
the issued share capital in each of the companies in
SEL Group (except SEL and Orchid International
Limited)

“Company” Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, and an indirectly 56.7%-owned
subsidiary of CIHL




DEFINITIONS

“Completion”

“Consideration”

“Director(s)”

“EBITDA”

“Enlarged Group”

“Escrow Agent”

“Escrow Account”

“Escrow Agreement”

“Escrow Amount”

“First Closing”

“Groupn

“HKFRS”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

completion of the Agre

bment

the consideration for the sale and purchase of the Sale

Shares

director(s) of the Comyany

the earnings (excludipg non-cash and extraordinary
earnings and losses) Hefore interest, tax, depreciation

and amortization

the Group together with SEL Group

Deacons, the legal ady
of the Acquisition

the interest-bearing 2

iser to the Company in respect

ccount to be opened by the

Escrow Agent with a Jicensed bank in Hong Kong for

the purposes of the Esg

the escrow agreement
into among the Comp;
Agent

the escrow amount(s) f
into the Escrow Accoy
of the Agreement

completion of the sale
Sale Shares pursuant 1d

row Agreement

dated 31 January 2007 entered
Iny, the Vendor and the Escrow

fom time to time 1o be deposited
nt in accordance with the terms

and purchase of Tranche [ of the
the terms of the Agreement

the Company and its sybsidiaries

Hong Kong Financial
Hong Kong Financial
Accounting Standards
Hong Kong Institute of

the Hong Kong Speci
People’s Republic of (

6 February 2007, being
to the printing of this
information contained

The Rules Governing
Stock Exchange

Reporting Standards, include all
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
hnd interpretations issued by the
Certified Public Accountants

il Administrative Region of the
hina

the latest practicable date prior
circular for ascertaining certain

nerein

the Listing of Securities on the




*Management Bonuses™

“Model Code”

“Mr. Lenz”

“Normalized 2006 EBITDA”

“Office”

“Pacific Coffee”

“Purchaser’s Loan”

“Resolved Claim”

“Sale Shares”

DEFINITIONS

remuneration payments accruing to the management of
SEL Group in respect of their performance attributable
to periods prior to | January 2006, comprising of (i)
management bonuses paid between the period from
1 January 2006 to 31 October 2006 in the amount of
HK$1.389,000 (the “2006 Management Bonuses™); and
(i1} unpaid management bonuses in the amount of
HK$2,514,535.06 as at 31 OQctober 2006 (the
“Outstanding Management Bonuses™)

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

Mr. Christopher James Lenz, the majority shareholder
of the Vendor holding 51.76% of the Vendor’s issued
share capital

EBITDA for 2006 before deduction of payments made
or accrued in respect of the 2006 Management Bonuses
and without taking into consideration (i) the accounts
of the outlet “Peel” at UG/F, 21 Elgin Street, Central,
Hong Kong, (ii} gain from the sale of the warehouse
located at Kwai Chung, New Territories and (iii) gain
from the sale of the Office

the head office premises of SEL Group at 5/F New
India House, 52 Wyndham Street, Hong Kong

Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on 25
July 1995

the loan up to HK$3.5 million to be advanced by the
Company to SEL Group at any time after First Closing
for the capital expenditure of SEL Group

a claim by the Company for the breach of any
warranties (including representation, warranty and
undertaking contained in the Agreement) which (a} has
been agreed by the Vendor and the Company or (b) in
respect of which final judgment is awarded in favour of
the Company by the courts of any competent
jurisdiction (for these purposes, a final judgment shall
be a judgment in respect of which all applicable rights
of appeal have been exhausted); and a claim being
“Resolved” shall be construed accordingly

100 ordinary shares in SEL, being the entire issued
share capital of SEL

—3_



“Second Closing™

“Service Agreement”

nS EL-..

“SEL Group™

“SFO™

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shareholders™ Agreement”

“Shareholders’ Loan”

“Stock Exchange”

“Tranche I”

“Tranche 1™

“Vendor™

“HK$"

.s%"

DEFINITIONS

completion of the salg
the Sale Shares pursuar

the service agreement

and purchase of Tranche Il of
t to the terms of the Agreement

dated 31 January 2007 entered

between SEL and Mr. ljenz

Sinochina Enterprises I
in the BVI with limited

CL Holdings and each
Closing and SEL and @
Closing

Securities and Futurcs
Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of H|
of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(3

the sharcholders’ agrg
entered into among the

the amount of approxi
CL Holdings to Asset
Packaging Limited as
interest accrued on thy
from 1 November 2006

The Stock Exchange of

the sale and purchase
constituting 49% of 1l

Limited. a company incorporated
liability

of its subsidiaries before First
ich of its subsidiaries after First
Ordinance {Chapter 571 of the

K$0.5 cuch in the share capital

)

ement dated 31 January 2007
Company. the Vendor and SEL

mately HK$5.7 million owed by
Finance Limited and GM Metal
at 31 October 2006 plus any
principal amount of such loan
until the date of payment

Hong Kong Limited

of 49 ordinary shares in SEL
e entire issued share capital of

SEL as at the date of Hirst Closing

the sale and purchasg
constituting 51% of
SEL as at the date of §

Sinochina Pacific Lim

of 51 ordinary shares in SEL
e entire issued share capital of
econd Closing

ted. a company incorporated in

the BVI with limited libility

Hong Kong dollar, the

per cent.

lawtul currency of Hong Kong




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
E-MEERBERAA

{incorporated in Bermuda with limited linbility)

(Stock code: 508)

Executive Directors: Registered office:
CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) Canen’s Court
FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director) 22 Victoria Streel
KUOK Hoi Sang Hamilton, HM 12
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Bermuda
KAN Ka Hon
CHOW Lily Head office and principal
place of business:

Independent non-executive Directors: 22nd Floor
YONEHARA Shinichi Chevalier Commercial Centre
WU King Cheong 8 Wang Hoi Road
KWONG Man Sing Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

7 February 2007

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION
INVOLVING ACQUISITION OF FOOD & BEVERAGE OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

On | December 2006, the Board and the CIHL Board jointly announced that the
Company had entered into the Agreement on 25 November 2006 with, among other parties,
the Vendor in relation to the acquisition of, in two tranches, a total of 100 shares in SEL,
representing the entire issued share capital of SEL.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the Listing

Rules. The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information on the Agreement,
SEL Group and other information as required under the Listing Rules.

*  For identification only
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LETTER FROM THE BO

THE AGREEMENT DATED 25 NOVEMBER 2006

1. Parties to the Agreement
Purchaser: The Company, an indirectly 56.7%-¢wned subsidiary of CIHL
Vendor: Sinochina Pacific Limited, a compdny incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability in which Mr. Lenz Jowns 51.76% of its issued share
capital. Sinochina Pacific Limitgd is an investment holding
company.
To the best of the knowledge, infgrmation and belief of the Board
and CIHL Board after having mafe all reasonable enquiries, the
Vendor and its beneficial shareholders (i) arc independent of the
Company and CIHL and their respdctive connected persons, and are
not connected persons of the Cofnpany and CIHL; and (ii) are
neither the same as nor associated pvith the parties to the agreement
in respect of the acquisition of Pacific Coftee (as described below).
2.  Asset to be acquired

The Sale Shares, being 100 ordinary shares of SEL, re¢

capital of SEL.

The Sale Shares will be acquired by the Company in
the acquisition of 49 ordinary shares of SEL and Tranche
ordinary shares of SEL.

SEL and its subsidiaries are engaged in ownership
other food and beverage outlets. SEL Group currently op

Presenting the entire issued share

two tranches. Tranche | involves
Il involves the acquisition of 51

ind operation of restaurants and
erates 20 outlets in Hong Kong,

Further information on SEL Group is set out in the sectjon headed “Information on SEL

Group™ below,

3. Consideration and payment terms

The Consideration {subject to adjustment), including

and Tranche II, shall be determined as follows and in any ¢

in aggregate:
{a) Consideration for Tranche I

The purchase price for the first part of Tranche

Shares will be valued at:
(4.5 x actual Normalized 2006 EBITDA) x 25%

the considerations for Tranche |
vent not exceed HK$200 million

I which represents 25% of Sale




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

The purchase price for the second part of Tranche | which represents 24% of Sale
Shares will be valued according to the following formula:

M x audited 2007 EBITDA x 24%, where M will be determined as follows:

If the audited 2007 EBITDA is:

(i) less than or equal to HK$23.0 million. M =45,
(ii) greater than HK$23.0 million but less than HK$26.0 million, M =50
(i) equal to or greater than HK$26.0 million, M = 5.5,

{by) Consideration for Tranche 11

The purchase price for Tranche II will be valued uaccording to the following
formula:

P x audited 2008 EBITDA x 51%, where P wtll be determined as follows:

If the audited 2008 EBITDA is:

(i) less than or equal to HK$25.0 million, P=4.5.
(ii) greater than HK$25.0 million but less than HK$30.0 million, P =5.0.
(iii) equal to or greater than HK$30.0 million, P=55.

IT in any one year there is a loss incurred (resulting in negative audited EBITDA), the
consideration calculated for that tranche of shares of SEL. which is determined by reference
to the audited EBITDA for such year, shall instead be based on the audited net tangible
asset value of SEL Group as reflected in the Audited Accounts for such year. Such
revaluation method of the consideration applies to both tranches, Lo the extent relevant, and
in the event of the significant disruption (as explained in sub-paragraph headed “Adjustment
for a significant disruption™ below) and Second Closing is accelerated pursuant to terms of
the Agreement (as explained in sub-paragraph hecaded “Adjustment in the event that Second
Closing 1s accelerated” below).

The Vendor and the Company agreed on a two-part Consideration so that the purchase
price for (i) the second part of Tranche I. and (ii) Tranche 11, will be based on the future
performance of SEL Group.

The Consideration, including the payment terms, was agreed between the Company and
the Vendor after arm’s length negotiations. The Consideration represents 4.5 times of the
actual Normalized 2006 EBITDA, and 4.5 to 5.5 times of the audited 2007 EBITDA and the
audited 2008 EBITDA of SEL Group in aggregate. The consideration for Tranche 1 shall be
paid at First Closing and the consideration for Tranche Il shall be paid at Second Closing.
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The Consideration shall be satisfied in cash and will be fifanced by the internal resources
and available banking facilities (if required) of the Group. As at the Latest Praclicable Date,

the Group had available banking facilities of approximately

reasonable after taking into account the 254.4% growth in
ended 2005 from that for the year ended 2004 of SEL Grou
outlets operated under SEL Group.

4.

HK$293.5 million.

Both the Board and the CIHL Board are of the view that the Consideration is fair and

Conditions precedent to First Closing

First Closing is conditional on:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

As at the Latest Practicable Date, all of the above
condition (i1} have been fulfilled. Condition (ii) was waiv
written notice dated 30 January 2007 to the Vendor.

completion of the restructuring of SEL Group

profit after taxation for the year
T as well as the reputation of the

ncluding formation of SEL and

re-organisation such that all the companies in 3EL Group shall be beneficially
wholly owned subsidiaries of SEL (except for Or¢hid International Limited):

the Company having obtained. in terms satis
approvals as may be required under the Li

factory to it, all consents and
sting  Rules  (including  without

limitation any approval by the sharcholders of [IFC Company} in connection with
the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder. and the Company
having issued and despatched its sharcholders’ cfrcular as required by the Listing

Rules:

the Company having obtuined confirmation in w

Fiting from each sharcholder and

director of cach company in SEL Group that it TJS no claim and is not aware of

any circumstance which may give rise to a cla
Group;

provision to the Company of a pro forma balan
month end of the calendar month immediately py
and management accounts with profit and loss
30th September 2006 and actual profit and loss a
January to September 2006: and

the Company having undertaken a due diligend
SEL Group as anticipated in paragraph (i) abd
review in all respects.

m against any company in SEL

fe sheet of SEL Group as at the
ior to the month of First Closing
iccounts and balance sheet as at
Fcounts for the ninc months from

. review of the restructuring of
ve and being satisfied with the

tonditions precendent except for
td by the Company by serving a




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

5. First Closing and Second Closing

First Closing took place on 31 January 2007 and an amount of approximately HK$42.8
million (subject to adjustments) was paid as purchase price for Tranche 1 (i.e. 49% of the
Sale Shares) upon First Closing.

Second Closing shall take place within 21 days after the issue of the Audited Accounts
for the year ending 31 December 2008, or such other dates as the parties may agree.

If at any time after First Closing and before Second Closing, (a) the Vendor or Mr.
Lenz has committed a deliberate and substantial breach of the Agreement or the
Shareholders” Agreement which breach (i) remains uncured for a period of 30 days after
notice from the Company to the Vendor. and (ii} deprives the Company of a fundamental
benefit of any of the agreements or is fundamentally inconsistent with the relationship of
trust contemplated by the agreements, or (b) Mr. Lenz has knowingly committed a deliberate
and material breach of a restrictive covenant or confidentiality obligation in the Service
Agreement or the agreement between Mr. Lenz and the Company, which breach remains
uncured for a period of 30 days after notice from the Company to the Vendor, and has or
will have a material adverse effect on the Company or SEL Group, the Company may at its
option by notice to the Vendor elect to (i) proceed to First Closing or Second Closing, as the
case may be, in so far as reasonably practicable; (i) postpone First Closing or Second
Closing as the case may be. to a date (being a Business Day) falling not more than 10
Business Days after the date set for First Closing or Second Closing: (iii) terminate the
Agreement; or (iv) by written notice accelerate Second Closing to a date no carlier than 10
Business Days after the date of breach.

After First Closing and before Sccond Closing, SEL Group will be equity accounted for
as an associated company of the Company in accordance with HKFRS. After Second
Closing, SEL Group will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results
will be consolidated into the Group.

6. Adjustments
{a}) Adjustment for a significant disruption

In the event that there is a significant disruption to the economic situation in
Hong Kong leading to a significant market downturn for restaurant businesses during
the financial year 2008 and the audited 2008 EBITDA of SEL Group is less than 70%
of the budgeted 2008 EBITDA (as provided by the Vendor at the beginning of 2008)
but positive (i.e. above zero) (if negative, the method of valuation based on net
tangible asset value as described above and the payment adjustment as described below
shall still apply). the sale and purchase of Tranche II of the Sale Shares shall be
completed and paid within 21 days of the issue of the Audited Accounts for the year
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cnding 31 December 2008. but an adjustment payme
after the issue of the Audited Accounts for the year
adjustment payment would be based on the Tollowing g

{51% x R x average of audited 2008 and 2009
Tranche 11, where R will be determined as follows:

If the average audited EBITDA for 2008 and 2004

(i) less than or equal to HK$25.0 million,
(i1)  greater than HK$25.0 million but less than
(iii) equal to or greater than HK$30.0 million,

(b} Adjustment in the event that Second Closing is uc
In the event that Second Closing is accelerated (u
above) to a date prior to the issuc of the Audited A
December 2008, the sale and purchase of Tranche
completed and paid in accordance with the following:

Valuation will be based on the most recent set of

issued. Therefore, if at the time of a breach. the Auditr:

31 December 2007 have been issued. the valuation o
shall be bused on the following formula:

T x audited 2007 EBITDA x 51%. where T will b

If the audited 2007 EBITDA is:

() less than or equal to HK$23.0 million,
(ii)  greater than HK$23.0 million but less than
(iii)  equal to or greater than HK$26.0 million,

If the Audited Accounts for the year ending 31
issued, the valuation of Tranche Il of the Sale Shares
formula;

4.5 x audited Normalized 2006 EBITDA x 51%

If the Audited Accounts for the year ending 31
issued, the valuation of Tranche 11 of the Sale Shares
formula:

4.5 x audited 2005 EBITDA x 51%

Payment shall be made at Second Closing.

—10-

t shall be made within 21 days
ending 31 December 2009, The
alculation:

EBITDA) less consideration for

) is:
R =45
HK$30.0 million. R =50
R =355

elerated

der the circumstances described
ccounts for the year ending 31
I of the Sale Shares shall be

A udited Accounts that have been
d Accounts for the ycar ending
I Tranche Il of the Sale Shares

E determined as follows:

T=45
HK$26.0 million, T=35.0
T=55

December 2007 have not been
shall be based on the following

December 2006 have not becn
chall be based on the following




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

7.  The Purchaser’s Loan

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company will lend to SEL Group upon request at any
time after First Closing the Purchaser’s Loan of up to HKS$3.5 million for the capital
expenditure of SEL Group. The Purchaser’s Loan will bear interest, payable semi-annually,
at the Hong Kong prime rate quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited plus 100 basis points, and will be repaid by SEL Group in six equal semi-annual
instalments commencing on the first anniversary of drawdown. The Purchaser’s Loan will be
secured by assets of SEL Group with a net realisable value of not less than the amount of
the Purchaser’s Loan. The Purchaser’'s Loan is expected to be financed by internal resources
of the Company.

3. Additional Borrowing

Subject to the terms of the Agreement, SEL Group may borrow al any time after First
Closing the Additional Borrowing of up to HK$11.5 million from third parties or the
Company (if the Company offers more favourable terms of finance) for the capital
expenditure of new outlets provided that, among others, SEL Group must obtain the
Company’s prior written approval of the opening or development of new outlets (save for
new outlets agreed with the Company prior to the date of the Agreement). The Additional
Barrowing, if provided, is expecied 0 be financed by internal resources of the Group or
external financing sources to be arranged by the Company depending on the then cash flow
position of the Group.

9. Other terms
The Vendor also undertakes to the Company that:

(a) on or before 31 December 2006 or First Closing, whichever is earlier, it shall
procure that SEL Group:

(1) sells and completes the sale of the Office for a sum of not less than HK$6.0
million;

(i1} uses the proceeds of sale of the Office to pay the Outstanding Management
Bonuses;

(iii) uses the balance of the proceeds of sale of the Office after payment of the
Outstanding Management Bonuses, to repay a corresponding portion of the
Shareholders’ Loan; and

(iv) provides evidence satisfactory to the Company that the above provisions
have been fully complied with; and

Upon First Closing, all of the above items except for item (iii) have been

fulfilled. Item (iii) was waived by the Company by serving a written notice dated
29 December 2006 to the Vendor,
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ANCILLARY AGREEMENTS

1.

(b) after First Closing, it shall procure that SEL Group:
(i)
amount of such loan from 1 November 2006
(ii) pays the dividends declared by CL Holg
Agreement in the amount of HK$5.556.01
outstanding and unpaid as at First Closing: 4
(iii}) repays the various tax loans in full (includ

by Shanghai Commercial Bank Ltd under f
2006 in the total principal sum of approximy

out of the operating cash flow of SEL Group.
cash flow to pay such sums immediately, such
possible thereafter and in any event before 31 De

The Shareholders’ Agreement dated 31 January 200

Parties: the Company;

the Vendor; and
SEL.
Principal terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement
(a) Board composition
The maximum number of directors of SEL shall
the Company and the Vendor is a sharcholder of SH
shall have the right to appoint and remove up to t

respectively.

The chairman of the board of SEL shall be appo
be entitled to a second or casting vote.

{b) Dividend policy

Shareholders of SEL will procure that immediat

repays the Shareholders’ Loan and any irterest accrued on the principal

until the date of payment;

ings prior to the date of the
5 1o the extent that it remains
nd

ng all interest and fees) granted
acility letters dated 2 November
tely HK$2.2 million,

If there is insufficient operating
tums shall be repaid as soon as
bember 2007,

-~

be seven. For so long as each of
|., the Company and the Vendor
ree directors and four directors

nted by such board and shall not

ly prior to Second Closing, SEL

Group will distribute all available cash generated fgom the normal operation of the

business of SEL Group that is legally available for d

stribution, provided that no such

distribution shall be made to the extent that it would cause the net current operating

assets of SEL Group as of Second Closing to be less
Second Closing there is cash generated from the nor
SEL Group that would have been distributed to the sh
immediately preceding sentence but for the fact

than zero. To the extent that at
mal operation of the business of
hreholders of SEL pursuant to the
hat such cash was not legally

available for distribution, the Consideration for Traijche II shall be increased by an

amount equal to 51% of the amount of such cash.
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fc)  Transfer of shares

No shareholder of SEL shall have the right to transfer any of its shares in SEL
except in accordance with the provisions of the Sharcholders’ Agreement.

The Vendor may not transfer any of its shares in SEL except to the Company at
Second Closing in accordance with the Agreement.

The Company may not transfer any of its shares in SEL 10 other parties unless it
fails to complete Second Closing in which case. it may transfer its shares in SEL to the
Vendor in accordance with the Agreement. However, the Company may at any time
transfer any or all of its shares in SEL to a company within the Group provided that
the transfcree shall execute an instrument satisfactory to the Vendor and agree to be
bound by the Shareholders’ Agreement, and the Company shall remain bound to ensure
that the transferce performs its obligations under the Shareholders’ Agreement.

There is no present intention to appoint Mr. Lenz as a Director.
2. The agreement between Mr. Lenz and the Company dated 31 January 2007

Pursuant to the Agreement, in consideration of the Company agreeing to enter into the
Agreement, the Shareholders’ Agreement and the Escrow Agreement, Mr. Lenz, as the
muajority shareholder of the Vendor, undertakes to, among other things, procure due and
punctual performance and compliance by the Vendor of its obligations and the giving of
undertakings by the minority shareholders of the Vendor in connection with the Acquisition.
In particular. Mr. Lenz undertakes that he holds and will continue to hold for the period
from First Closing until Second Closing no less than 51% of the issued share capital of the
Vendor.

3.  The Escrow Agreement dated 31 January 2007

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Escrow Agreement was entered into among the
Company, the Vendor and the Escrow Agent upon First Closing on 31 January 2007. On
Sccond Closing. a proportion of the consideration for Tranche Il equal to the maximum
aggregate liability of the Vendor under the warranties of the Agreement (i.e. HK$ 10 million)
less any Resolved Claim, shall be placed into escrow until the expiry of the one year period
following Second Closing. The Escrow Amount shall be held by the Escrow Agent to be
used by way of set-off against any Resolved Claim after Second Closing. Consideration for
Tranche Il shall be reduced by the amount of any Resolved Claim as of Second Closing.
The Escrow Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until the Escrow Agreement is
terminated or all monies in the Escrow Account have been released in accordance with the
Escrow Agreement.

4. The Service Agreement dated 31 January 2007

Pursuant to the Agreement, Mr. Lenz and SEL entered into the Service Agreement upon
First Closing on 31 January 2007 to employ Mr. Lenz as the chief executive officer of SEL
for the purpose of facilitating a smooth transition of SEL Group after the Acquisition.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Service Agreement, the

bmployment of Mr. Lenz as the

chief executive officer of SEL shall be for a term of two anfd a half years commencing from

First Closing.

INFORMATION ON SEL GROUP

b

“~

SEL was incorporated in the BVI on 6 September
exercise, SEL has become the holding company of the g
Group (also known under the trade name “lgor’s”). The fi
1998 and now there are 20 outlets in operation including.
Boathouse™”, “Stormies Crabshack™ and “Café de Paris™ in
such as Lan Kwai Fong, Soho, Stanley, and Knutsford
restaurants offer a wide variety of international cuisines. ra
casual fast food. In addition, Igor’s also operates bars
entertainment districts of Lan Kwai Fong and Wanchai. na

D06, Pursuant to a restructuring
ompanies now comprising SEL
st restaurant was established in
among others, “Wildfire”, “The
arious prime dining destinations
Terrace in Hong Kong. Igor’s

nd restaurants in the premier
mely “Stormies™, “The Cavern™,

ngng from traditional French to
A

“Swindlers”, and “Typhoon”, where their resident bands ¢ffer a repertoire of live music

entertainment.

Set out below is the audited consolidated financi
{excluding SEL) for the two years ended 31 December 20
ended 30 November 2006 prepared in accordance with the H

For the y

31 Deg

2004

HKS$ million

Turnover 8§1.4
Profit before taxation 35
Profit after taxation 24
AN

31 December

2004

HK$ million

30.3
10.3

Total assets
Net assels

bl information of SEL Group
b4 and 2005 and cleven months
KFRS:

For the
eleven
months
ended 30
November
2006

HKS$ million

ear ended
ember
2005
HKS$ million

105.8 107.0

9.4 7.6

8.3 6.6

at As at 30
31 December November
2005 2006

HKS$ million HKS million

39.1
20.2

50.1
19.6

The accountants’ report on SEL Group is set out in Appendix 1 to this circular.

After First Closing and before Second Closing, SEL Gy
as an associated company of the Company in accordang
Closing, SEL Group will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
will be consolidated into the Group.
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pup will be equity accounted for
e with HKFRS. After Second
of the Company and its results
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FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

Upon Completion, SEL would become a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and its results, asscts and liabilitics would be consolidated into the accounts of the
Group.

Earnings

The Group recorded an audited consolidated profit after tax of approximately HK$37.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2006. The SEL Group recorded an audited consolidated
profit after tax of approximately HK$6.6 million for the period from 1 January 2006 to 30
November 2006. Given the track record of SEL Group, the Acquisition will enlarge the
carning base of the Group in the future.

Assets and liabilities

As set out in the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Group in Appendix H to
this circular, the Group had unaudited net tangible asset value of approximately HK$274.5
million as at 30 Sepiember 2006. After the Acquisition. the unaudited pro forma net tangible
asset of the Enlarged Group was approximately HK$92.8 million as shown in the unaudited
pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group in Appendix Il to this
circular. The drop was mainly attributable to the goodwill and intangible assets arising from
the Acquisition of approximately HK$181.9 million.

As shown in the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged
Group in Appendix Il to this circular, the Enlarged Group would hypothetically record net
liabilities of approximately HK$20 million after Completion. As disclosed in the note (3) to
the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities in Appendix IIl to this circular,
the Directors consider that they are not in a position to make a best estimate of the
Consideration at the moment because it is based on the future performance of SEL Group.
Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged
Group is prepared on the basis that the Consideration would be at a maximum amount of
HK$200 million and on the assumption that such HK$200 million would be settled by single
payment. Given the actual settlement of Tranche { and Tranche 11 would be made during
2007 1o 2009, the Directors consider that the net current liability position of the Enlarged
Group as set out in the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the
Enlarged Group has no immediate adverse effect on the liquidity of the Enlarged Group.

Gearing

As set out in the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Group in Appendix II to
this circular, the Group had bank borrowings of approximately HK$95 million as at 30
September 2006. After the Acquisition, the bank borrowings of the Enlarged Group was
approximately HK$100 million as shown in the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and
liabilities of the Enlarged Group in Appendix 1II 1o this circular.

The above financial effects on assets and liabilities, and gearing, are for illustrative
purpose only and do not purport to represent the results or financial position of the Enlarged
Group on Completion.
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BACKGROUND TO AND REASONS FOR THE ACQUIS

The Board was approached by Quam Capital Limitg

ITION

d, the financial adviser to the

Vendor in February 2006 regarding an investment opportupity in SEL. After carrying out

preliminary financial and legal duc diligence on the busines
commenced negotiations with the Vendor in acquiring the ed
The Agreement was reached between the-parties to the Agre

The Company completed the acquisition of Pacific
selling coffees and cold beverages, pastries and coffee-rel:
outlets, Pacific Coffee also sells its branded products to
coffee services to corporate customers including hoteld
corporations. For the year ended 31 March 2006, Pacific
turnover of appreximately HKS180 million to the Group. [
Coffee in capturing the fast growing and lucrative specialty

tes of SEL Group. the Company
tire tssued share capital of SEL.
bment on 25 November 2006.

offee in May 2(H)5. Apart from
ed hardware and supplies at its
vholesale accounts and provides

restaurants, clubs and large
Coffee contributed a 10-month
h light of the success of Pacific
coffee business in Hong Kong,

i

it is disclosed in the Company’s 2005/2006 annual report that the Board intends to further

develop the Group’s food and beverage business to obtain
the income strecam. The Company will continue to develop
further explore nvestment opportuenitics in the food and b
and neighbouring regions. The Board considers that the
Group’s business strategy.

The Acquisition rcpresents an allractive opportunity
Group to fortify its food and beverage business, In parlic
outlets operated under SEL Group will enable the Group
lucrative western lifestyle food and beverage market i
Acquisition, the Company may leverage on its market know
and beverage business and enjoy operational economies of s

In view of the above, both the Board (including
Directors) and the CIHIL Board consider the terms of
Consideration and its payment terms, are on normal con
reasonable and the Acquisition is in the interest of the Co
whole.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS

Under the Listing Rules, the Acquisition, when aggre
and the Additional Borrowing if provided by the Company,
the Company and would normally require sharcholders™ app
Company. According to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rulg

|

cconomies of scale and broaden
its existing businesses and will
pverage business in Hong Kong
Acquisition is in line with the

to the Group as it cnables the
lar, the Board belicves that the
o capture the fast growing and
h Asia. Furthermore, after the
Jcdge and experience in the food
tale.

the independent non-cxecutive
the Acquisition, including the
mercial terms and are fair and
mpany and its sharcholders as a

pated with the Purchaser’s Loan
Fonstitutes a major transaction of
roval at a general meeting of the
s, in the event that a written

sharcholders™ approval has been obtained from a sharcholder who holds more than 50% in

nominal value of the sccurities giving the right to attend ar
approve the transaction, the holding of a general meeting ¢
reccived a written approval in respect of the Acquisition {
Firstland Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
of the issued share capital of the Company as at th
Shareholder, including CIHL and its associates, is interestd
Shareholder, therefore no Shareholder would be required
Company were to convene a general meeting to approve thi
knowledge, information and belief of the respective Boards
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Vendor and its asjy
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d vote at the gencral meeting to
hn be waived. The Company has
rom CIHL, which together with
CIHL, hold approximately 56.7%
e Latest Practicable Date. No
d in the Acquisition except as a
to abstain from voting if the
E Acquisition, To the best of the
of the Company and CIHL after
ociates do not have any interests
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in the Company or CIHL. Accordingly, under Rule 14,44 of the Listing Rules, a general
meeting of the Company to be held for its sharcholders to approve the Acquisition is not
required.

Pursuant 10 Rule 4.06(1) of the Listing Rules. the accountants” report on SEL Group as
set out in Appendix [ to this circular should comprise the consolidated results of SEL Group
for each of the three financial years immediately preceding the issue of this circular (i.e.
each of the three financial years ended 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006). The Company
has applied to the Stock Exchange for a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 4.06(1) of
the Listing Rules on the ground that strict compliance with the requirements under Rule
4.06(1} of the Listing Rules would be unduly burdensome since additional field work on the
December 2006 financial information would be required and there would not have been
sufficient time for SEL Group and the reporting accountants, Li, Tang, Chen & Co., to
produce the accountants’ report on SEL Group for the three years ended 31 December 2006
in order to despatch this circular on or before 7 February 2007. In addition, the Directors
have performed sufficient due diligence work on SEL Group 1o ensure that, up to the date of
this circular, there has been no malerial adverse change in the financial position of SEL
Group since 30 November 2006 and there has been no cvent occurred since 30 November
2006 which would material affect the financial information as shown in the actountants’
report on SEL Group in Appendix 1 to this circular. The Stock Exchange has granted the
Company the waiver from strict compliance with Rule 4.06(!) of the Listing Rules on the
conditions that (i) this circular is to be despatched on or before 7 February 2007 and (ii) the
Directors have confirmed that sufficient due diligence work as mentioned above was
performed. The accountants’ report on SEL Group as set out in Appendix [ to this circular
now comprises each of the three finuncial years ended 31 December 2003, 2004, 2005 and
the eleven months ended 30 November 2006.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries. is
principally engaged in the provision of computer and information communication
technology, food and beverage and investment in securities.

CIHL is an invesiment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the business of construction and engineering. insurance and investment, property
investment. hotel investment. information technology and food & beverage.

GENERAL

Your attention is drawn to the additional information contained in the appendices to
this circular.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman
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APPENDIX 1

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON SEL GROUP

(A) ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON SEL GROUP

The following is the text of a report, prepared for thel purpose of incorporation in this

circidar, received from the reporting accountants, Li,
Accountants, Hong Kong.

Liikes

The Directors,
Chevalier iTech Haldings Limited

ﬁ

REETENSE B

L1, TANG, CHEN & CO.

Cermled Public Accountams (Practising}

Dear Sirs,

Tung,

¥

Chen & Co., Certified Public

7th February 2007

We set out below our report on the financial information relating to Sinochina

Enterprises Limited (the “Target Company™) and its sub
referred o us the “Target Group™) for the periad fro
incorporation of CL Holdings Limited) to 31st December.

tidiaries (hereinafter collectively
v 1Sth January, 2003 (date of
2003 tor each of the two years

ended 31st December. 2004 and 2005 and the eleven mogths ended 30th November, 2006

{the “Reclevant Periods™) and the eleven months ended 3

Oth November, 2005 (the “30th

November, 2005 Financial Information™). prepared on the fasis set out in note | of Section

B below for inclusion in the circular of Chevalier iTech H
dated 7th February, 2007 in connection with the proposed
interest in the Target Company by the Company (the “Cire

bldings Limited (the “Company™)
acquisition of the cntire equity
ar™),

The Target Company was incorporated in the Brifish Virgin Islands with limited

liability under the International Business Companics Act of]
September. 2006, The principal activity of the Target ¢
During the Relevant Periods, the Target Group is pr
operations. The Target Company has not carried on any bu
the entire cquity interests in CL Holdings Limited as de
2006. since its incorporation.

All companics now comprising the Target Group havy
financial year end date.

Pursuant to the restructuring of the Target Group
sharcholders of CL Holdings Limited transferred their inig
the Target Company for the purpose of acting as the hold
and associate as sct out below.
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the British Virgin Islands on 6th
Company is investment hoelding.
ncipally engaged in restaurant
iness, save for the acquisition of
fined below on 23rd November.

adopted 31st December as their

on 23rd November, 2006, the
rests in CL Holdings Limited to
ing company of the subsidiaries
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON SEL GROUP

As at the date of this report, the Target Company had direct and indirect interests in

Name

Subsidiaries.
CL Holdings Limited

Capital World (H.K.)
Limited

Info Dragon Limited

New Global (H.K.)
Limised

Orient Talent (Hong
Kong) Limited

Grand Concept (Hong
Kong) Limited

Giant Ocean (H.K)
Limited

Pacific York (H.K.}
Limited

Champ Success (Hong
Kong} Limited

Igor's Group
Management
Limited

Giant Dragon (Hong
Kong) Limited

Super Target (Hong
Kang) Limited

Success Well (HK)
Limited

Eastech Limited

Marson Consultants
Limited
Associate:
QOrchid International
Limited

the following subsidiaries and associate:

Place and
date of
incorporation

Hong Kong
15/01/2003

Hong Kong
140872000

Hong Kong
6/8/2003

Hong Kong
JOR2000

Hong Kong
050772002

Hong Kong
06/12/2002

Hong Kong
2011171998

Hong Kong
24/0412001

Hong Kong
24703720413

Hong Kung
25110/1999

Hong Kong
06/0172003

Hong Kong
15/1272003

Hong Kong
14/03/2006

Hong Kong
13/06/1991

Hong Kong
10/33/1994

Hong Kong
1940912001

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up share

Ordinary
HK$200.000

Ordinary
HKS$5.000

Ordinary
HK$10.000

Ordinary
HK$10.000

Ordinary
HKS2

Ordinary
HKS2

86 class “A”
ordinary
shares
HK586

90 c¢lass "B”
ordinary
shares
HKS90

Ordinary
HK$2

Ordinary
HK$2

Ordinary
HKS$2

Ordinary
HK$10.000

Ordinary
HK$100

Ordinary
HK$10.000

Ordinary
HKS$6.080.832

Ordinary
HKS$10

Ordinary
HK$760,000

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to the
Target Company
Direct  Indirect
100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

- 1GG%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

- 100%

- 50%

Principal
activities

Investment
holding
Restaurant
Trading of
food and
beverage
Restaurant
Restaurant

Restaurant

Restaurant

Restaurant
Restaurant

Restaurant

Restaurant
Restaurant
Restaunrant
Restaurant

Restaurant

Restaurant

Note

{f)

{2)

(3)
(4)
(3)

(6}

(7)
(8}

{9)

(10}
(H)
(12)
(13)

f14)

(15)
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Nate

Capital World (H.K.} Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Graup on 2nd April. 2003,

2. Info Dragon Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Group on 22nd August, 2003.

3. New Global (H.K.) Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Groug on 2nd April. 2003,

4, Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited became a subsidiary of the Targpt Group on 2nd April. 2003,

5. Grand Concept {(Hong Kong) Limited became a subsidiary of the Tatget Group on 2nd April. 2003.

6. Giant Ocean (H.K.} Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Growp on 2nd April. 2003,

7. Pacific York (H.K.) Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Group on 2nd April. 2003,

8. Champ Success (Hong Kong) Limited became a subsidiary of the Tdrget Group on 3rd May. 2003.

9, [gor's Group Management Limited became a subsidiary of the Targdt Group on 25th July, 2003,

10.  Giant Dragon (Hong Keng) Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Group on 8th September. 2003,

I1.  Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited became a subsidiary of the Targgt Group on 16th January. 2004,

12, Success Well (HK) Limited became a subsidiary of the Target Group on 10th July, 2006.

13.  The Turget Group acquired 17.48% of isswed ordinary shares of Eagtech Limited on 2tth October. 2003 and
further acquired remaining 31.75% and 50.77% of tssued ordinury fhares on 23rd December, 2004 and 31st
QOctober. 2006 respectively.

14, The Target Group acquired 40% of issucd ordinary shares of Marsop Consultants Limited on 2Znd July, 2003
and turther acquired remaining 60% of the issued ordinary shares og 31st October, 2006.

15.  The Target Group acquired 50% of issued ordinary shares of Orchid International Limited on 1st November,

2005.

The Financial Information hus been prepared by sole director of Target Company based

on the audited financial statements or. where appropri
financial statements of Target Group. after making such
Adjustments have been made for the purpose of this o
statements to conform with accounting policies as referred
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Kong Institute of Certitied Public Accountants ("HKICPA™
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Interpretations.

For the purpose of this report, we have carried out
respect of the audited financial statements or. where app
financial statements of Target Group for the Relevani Pg
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA a
procedures as we considered necessary in  accordance

“Prospectuses and the Reporting Accountant™ issued by the

te, the unaudited management
adjustments as are appropriale.
bport to
o Section B below, which are in
“*HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
. HKFRSs include all applicable
Kong Accounting Standards and

restate these financial

appropriate audit procedures in
ropriate, unaudited management
riods in accordance with Hong
hd carried out such additional
with the Auditing Guideline
HKICPA.
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For the purpose of this report, we have performed a review of the 30th November,
2005 Financial Information. which includes the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of the Target Group for
the eleven months ended 30th November, 2005, for which the sole director of the Target
Company is responsible, in accordance with Statement of Auditing Standard 700
“Engagements to review interim financial reports™ issued by the HKICPA. A review consists
principally of making enquiries of management and applying analytical procedures to the
3mh November, 2005 Financial Information and bused thereon. assessing whether the
accounting policies and presentation have been consistently applied unless otherwise
disclosed. A review excludes audit procedures such as tests of controls and verification of
assets and liabilities than an audit or examination procedurcs described in the preceding
paragraph. and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on the 30th November, 2005
Financial Information.

The Financial Information, which includes the consolidated income stalements,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statements of the
Target Group for the Relevant Periods and the 30th November, 2005 Financial Information,
the consolidated balance sheets of the Target Group as at 3kst December. 2003, 2004 and
2005 and 30th November. 2006, together with the notes thereto as set out in this report,
have been prepared and presented on the basis sct out in note | of Section B below.

The directors of the respective companies of the Target Group are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the relevant companies which give a true and fair
view. The sole director of the Target Company is responsible for the preparation of the
Financial Information. In preparing the Financial Information which gives a true and fair
view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policics are sclected and applied
consistently. 11 is our responsibility to form an independent opinion. based on our audit, on
the Financial Information.

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in
the Financial Information concerning the adoption of the going concern basis for the
preparation of the Financial Information. As explaincd in note | of Section B below, the
Financial Information has been prepared on a going concern basis. the validity of which is
based on the ability of the Target Group to generate positive cash flow from its operation.
We have cvaluated the sole director’s assessment of the ability to continue as a going
concern by analysing cash flow forecast from Ist Jaunuary. 2007 to 28th February. 2008
prepared by the sole director and have also reviewed and discussed with the sole director
regarding the Target Group’s future investment and business plans. The Financial
Information has been prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that the Target
Group can gencrate positive cash flow from its operation and future investments.

In our opinion. on the basis of presentation set out in note | of Section B below. the
Financial Information. for the purpose of this report. gives a truc and fair view of the
consolidated results and consolidated cash flows of the Target Group for the Relevant
Periods and of the consolidated state of affairs of the Target Group as at 31st December,
2003, 2004 and 2005 and 30th November. 2006 and the staute of affairs of the Target
Company as at 30th November, 2006.

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, we are not awarc of any

material modifications that should be made 1o the 3th November, 2005 Financial
Information.
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A.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Period from
15th January,
2003 (date of

incorporation of

CL Holdings

Limited) to 31st Year ended 31st December

Eleven months ended
30th November

December,
Note 2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HKS'060 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
(unaudited)
TURNOVER 5 45.742 81.424 105.804 93,591 107.041
COST OF SALES {9.373) (15,348} {20,210 {18.209) (21.176)
GROSS PROFIT 36,369 66.076 83.594 77.382 85.865
OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS 5 4,704 1.925 3622 1,431 7.006
ADMINISTRATIVE AND
OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES (38.422) (64.251) (79.949) (73,169) (85,862}
FINANCE COSTS 4] (67) (238) (1400 (99) (231)
SHARE OF RESULTS OF
ASSOCIATES - - 292 354 806
PROFIT BEFORE
TAXATION 7 2.674 3512 9419 5.899 7.584
TAX EXPENSE 8 (721) (1.160) (1.084) (907) {999}
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS 1.953 2.352 8.333 4.992 6.585

DIVIDEND 9 - -

7.200
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BALANCE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS SHEET

As at As at

30th 30th

As at 31st December November November

Note 2003 2004 2005 2006 2006

HK3'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property. plant and equipment 10 11.206 14,855 10.858 17.761 -
Prepaid land lease payments 1 498 497 496 950 -
Subsidiary 12 - - - - 390
Associates 13 (133) 387 5.424 1,462 -
Investment securities i4 1,190 - - - -
Goodwill 15 - - - - -
Negative goodwill 16 (2.083) (1.562) - - -
Deferred tax assets 17 76 99 257 336 -
Rental deposits 2,586 2.907 3.841 3.450 -
Circulatory inventories 476 687 718 1.113 -
13,816 17.870 21,594 25,112 390

CURRENT ASSETS
[nventories 18 1.516 1,913 2.586 3103 -
Rental and other deposits 1.990 2,193 3.206 6.343 -
Accounts receivable 19 217 2278 1.553 1.087 -
Amount due from related

companies of SEL 20 - - - 268 -
Amount due from sole director of

SEL 21 - - 341 - -
Prepaid land lease payments 1 | ] 1 21 -
Prepayments 249 433 567 931 -
Tax recoverable 8fc) - 56 - 118 -
Cash and bank balances 22 2,739 5.544 9.285 13,134 -

7.312 12.418 17.539 25.005 -

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amount due to ultimate holding

company of SEL 23 (389) (389} (389 (267) (389)
Amount due to an associate of

SEL 23 - - (216} - -
Amount due to related companies

of SEL 23 (1.571) (1) - - -
Amount due to sole director of

SEL 23 (1.629) (2.279) - - -

Amount due to shareholders of

the ultimate helding company

of SEL 24 (6.208) (5.850) (5.000) (5.700)
Receipts in advance - {340) (120) - -
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BALANCE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS SHEET

As at As at

Joth 30th

As at 31st December November November

Note 2003 2004 2005 206 2006

HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000

Accounts payable 25 (3.179} (4.960) (4.265) (7.340) -
Accrued expenses (3.351) (3.824) (5.149 (3.728) -
Dividend payable - - - {5.556) -
Current portion of obligations
under finance leases 26 (60 (60) (43) {(78) -
Bank borrowings 27 (1.894) {1.046) (2.450) (2.603) -
Tax payable (209) (822} (1.138) (1L.101) -
(18,490) (19.681) (18,770} {28,373} (389)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (11.178) (7.263) (1.231) (3.368) (389)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2.638 10,607 20,363 21.744 !

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Obligations under finance leases 26 (100) (40) - (18} -
Bank borrowings 27 (555) {148) (139) (2,117} -
Deferred tax lLabilities 17 (319) (92) - - -

{974) (280) (139) {2.135) -
NET ASSETS 1.664 10,327 20,224 19,609 ]

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 l 1 | | |
Merger reserve 29 (290) 6.021 6.021 6.021 -
Unapprepristed profits 1.953 4,303 7.002 13.587 -
Proposed final dividend — - 7.200 - -

1,664 10,327 20,224 19,609 ]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Proposed
Share Merger Unappropriated final
capital reserve profits  dividend Total
HK3'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Balunce at 15th January,
2003 (date of
incorporation of CL
Holdings Limited) | (290) - - (289)
Profit for the pertod - - 1.953 - 1.953
Balance at 31st December,
2003 ] (290) 1,953 - 1.664
Issue of new shares by CL
Holdings Limited - 6,311 - - 6.311
Profit for the ycar - - 2,352 - 2.352

Balance at 31st December,

2004 and Jst January.

20035 1 6.021 4.305 - 10,327
Opening balance

adjustment arising on

adoption of HKFRS 3

(note 2(i)) - - 1.562 - 1.562

Balance at Ist January.

2005 1 6.021 5.867 - 11.889
Profit for the year - - 8.335 - 8.335
Proposed Minal dividend - - (7.200) 7.200 —

Balance at 31st December.

2005 1 6.021 7.002 7.200 20.224
Profit for the period - - 6.585 - 6.585
Dividend paid - - - (7.200) (7,200)

Balance at 30th November,
2006 ] 6.021 13,587 - 19,609

(Unaudited)
Balance at 1st January,

2005 1 6.021 5.867 - 11.889
Profit for the period - - 4.992 - 4.992

Balance at 30th November,
2005

—

6,021 10,859 - 16,381
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Period from
15th January,
2003 (date of
incorporation
of CL Holdings v 4 Eles b ended
Limited} to .l‘dl)' ende : t;[i;nhn:m.l 5 l:‘n e
st December. 31st December 301th November
2003 2004 2005 2003 2006
HES 00 HES'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
{unaudited)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 1.674 3.512 9419 5.899 7.584
Adjusiments for:
Share of results of associates - - (292) (354) (806)
Depreciation 2.890 4,939 5.615 5015 4.845
Amortisation on prepaid kand lease
payments 1 1 | ! 21
Interest income (1 (n (68) (4h (157)
Amortisation of negative goodwill
arising on acquisition of substdiaries (4.542) (321} - - -
Gain on disposal of property. plant. and
equipment and prepaid land lease
payments - - - - (5.370)
Interest expenses 67 238 140 99 231
Bad debts writlen oft 33 - - - -
Property. plant and equipment written
off 29 - 4 4 29
Provision against/{write-back of
provision againsi) interest in
associates 3,140 G920 (2.242) - -
Write-off of interest in an associate - 2,883 - - -
Provision against investment securities 596 - - - -
Impairment loss on goodwill - - - - 1.933
Increase in circulatory inventories (1530) (211) (31} (31) (272)
Increase in inventories (922) (397} (673} (49(h (397}
Increase in rental and other deposits (2.979) (524 (1.947) (1.020) {2.377)
{Increase)/decrease in accounts
receivable {323) (1.461) 725 A28 547
Increase in amount due from related
companies of SEL - - - - (268)
{IncreascHdecrease in amount due from
sole director of SEL - - (31) (341 34t
Increase in prepayments (249) {184) (134) (354) (307)
Decrease in amount due to ultimate
hotding company of SEL - - - - (122)
Increase/(decrease) in amount dee to an
associate of SEL - - 2i6 - (216)
Increasef/(decrease) in amound due to
related companies of SEL 5.059 {1.460) (1n (111 -
Increase/(decrease) in amount due Lo
sole director of SEL 1.629 650 (2.279) (2.279) -
Increase/(decrease) in amount due 10
sharghelders of the ultimate holding
company of SEL 1.665 (358) (850) (850} 00
[ncrease/(dectease) in receipts in
advance - 340 (220 (203) (120)
Increasef{decrense) in accounts payable 597 1.781 (693) {1.033) (1.448)
Increase in accrued expenses 3,351 473 1.325 984 458
Cash generated from operations 12.565 10.620 7.562 5.624 4,829
lnterest paid (67) (238) (140) {99) (231)
Tax paid (1.468) (853) (962) (867) {1.233)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 11,030 9.529 6.460 4,658 3.365
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of property, plant
and equipment

Sale proceeds on property.
plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Investment in associates

(Net advances to)/repayment
from associates

Acquisition of investment
securities

NET CASH (USED IN)/
FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Proceeds on issue of new
shares of CL Holdings
Limited

Bank loans obtained

Repavment of bank loans

Capital element of finance
leases rental payments

NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

ANALYSIS OF THE
BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Period from
15th January,
2003 (date of

incorporation of

CL Holdings

Limited) to 31st . \"ear e‘nded Eleven months ended
December, Mst December 30th November
Nore 2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HKS'000 HK3'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
(unaudited)
1 1 68 40 157
(9.832) (8.588) (1.622) (1.557)  (13.208)
- - - - 7,841
35 2,135 - - - 540
- (€110)] (5¢1) - -
(1.337) (2,823 (2.001) (2.423) 4,768
{(1.786) - - - _
B 1010 S pvi0) I G A L1 B (39400 ... 98
- - - - (1.644)
100 6.311 - - -
3.018 764 3.350 3,350 4,650
(570) (2.019) (1.955) {1.567) (2.518)
(20) (60) {58) (4) (102)
Sy u v B 9% 1337 ) L7199 386
2739 2.805 3741 2.497 1.849
- 2.739 5.544 5.544 9,285
2,739 5.544 9,285 8,041 13.134
2739 5.544 9.285 8.041 13.134
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B. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Financial Information has been prepared based on the principles of merger accounting in
accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations™ issued by
the HKICPA. as il the restructuring had been completed as at the beginning of the Relevam Periods because
the TFarget Company’s acquisitions of CL Holdings Limited should be regarded as business combinations
under common control as the Target Company and CL Holdings Limited are ultimately controlled by the
ultimate holding company of the Targer Group. before and afier restructuring.

The consolidated income statements. consolidated cash flow statements and consolidated statements
of changes in equity of the Target Group for the Relevant Periods include the results and cush flows of all
companies now comprising the Target Group as if the current structure had been in existence throughout the
Relevant Periods, or since their respective date of acquisition, incorporation or establishment, where this is
a shorter period. The consolidated balance sheets of the Target Group as at 31st December, 2003, 2004 and
2005 and as at 3th November, 2006 have been preparcd 1o present the state of affairs of the Target Group
as if the current structure had been in existence and in accordance with the respective equity interests and/
or the power to exercise control over the individual companies auributable to the existing sharcholders as at
the tespective dates.

The Financial Information has been prepared on the presumption that the Target Group will continue
to operate as a going concern. This presumption is based on the opinion of the sole director that the Target
Group can generate positive cash flow from its operation o meet any liabilities as they fall due within
twelve months from 1st December, 2006.

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance:

The Financial [nformation has been prepared in accordance with the significant accounting
policies set oul below. These accounting policies are in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
(which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporling Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs™} and [nterpretations) isswed by the MKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong., and have been consistently applied
throughout the Relevant Periods.

The HKFRSs which are relevant to these Financial Information are set out below and the
Financial Infermation for the Relevamnt Periods have been restated as required. in accordance with the
relevant requirements.

L HKAS | Presentation ol financial statements:

. HKAS 2 Inventories:

. HKAS 7 Cash flow statements;

. HKAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors:
. HKAS 10 Events after the balunce shect date:

. HKAS 12 Income taxes;

. HKAS 14 Segment reporting:

. HKAS 16 Property. plant and equipment;

L HKAS 17 Leases:

. HKAS 13 Revenue:

] HKAS 19 Employee benefits:

» HKAS 2t The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates:
. HKAS 23 Borrowing costs;

] HKAS 24 Related party disclosures;
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] HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements:
. HKAS 28 Investment in associates:
. HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Disclosure and presentation;
. HKAS 36 Impairment of assets:
. HKAS 37 Provisiens. contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
. HKAS 38 Intungible assets:
] HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement;
. HKAS 39 Transition and initial recognition of financial assets and financial
Amendment linbilities:
. HKAS 39 and Financial Guarantee Contracts: and
HKFRS 4
Amendment
. HKFRS 3 Business combinaticns.

The adoption of the following HKFRSs has resulted in changes in the Target Group's
accounting policies that have an effect on how the results for the Relevant Periods prepared and
presented,

i) Owner-occuplied feaschold interest in fund

In previous years. owner-occupied leaschold land and buildings were included in
property, plant and equipment and meussured using the cost model. From 1st January, 2005
onwards, the Target Group has applicd HKAS 17 “Leases™ (*HKAS 177). Under HKAS 17, the
land and buildings elements of a lease of lund and buildings are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classitication. upless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and baildings clements. in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a
finance lease, To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments between the land and
buildings elements can be made reliably. the lcasehold interests in land are reclassificd to
prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried at cost and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively.

This new accounting policy relating 1o leases bas resulied in the following etfects;

i) a decrease in the Target Group's property. plant and cquipment as at 31st
December. 2004 and 2003 by HKS498.440 and HK$499.177 respectively.

ii) an increase in the Target Group's prepaid land lease payments as at 31st
December, 2004 and 2003 by HK$498.440 and HK$499,177 respectively,

i) HKFRS 3 — Business combinations

From st January, 2005 onwards, the Target Group has applied HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations™ which is effective for business combinations for which the agreement date is on
or after Ist Junuary. 2005, The principal ¢ffects of the application of HKFRS 3 to the group
are summarized below:

Excess of the Target Group's interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liahilities and contingenr liabilities over cost (previeusly known as “negative goodwill”)

In accordance with HKFRS 3. any cxcess of the Target Group’s interest in the nen fair
ralue of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilitics and contingent liabilitics over the cost of
acquisition (Cdiscount en acquisition™) is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the acquisition wkes place. In previcus periods. negative goodwill arising from
acquisitions was presented as o deduction from assets and released to income based on an
analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted. In accordance with the relevant
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transitional provision in HKFRS 3. the Target Group derecognised all negative goodwill on 1st
January. 2005, Accordingly. adjustments of HK$1.562.000 o the unappropriated profits as at
st Januwary, 2005 has been made.

The Financial Information also complics with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™)

b} Basis of consolidation:

The Financial Information includes the financial statements ol the Target Company and its
subsidiaries for the Relevant Periods. The results of the companies comprising the Target Group were
presented on a merger accounting basis as described in note (1) above.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Target Group are climinated
on consolidation.

c) Basis of preparation of the Financial Information:

The measurement basis used in the preparation of 1he Financial Information is the historical
cost hasis.

d) Property, plant and equipment:

Property. plamt and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into operation. such ax repairs and
maintenance. is normally charged to the income statement in the peried in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in un increase in the
future economic benefits expected (0 be obtained from the vse of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost ol that asset.

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to
allocate cost to their residual value over their estimated useful lives as Tollows:

Buildings 44 per annum
Leasehold improvemenis 33 143 % per annum or

terms of lease
Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum
Office equipment 20% per annum
Plant and equipment 200% per annum
Kitchen and bar equipment 20% per annum
Maotoer vehicles 30% per annum

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balunce sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 10 its recoverable amount
if the asseU's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property. plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
cconomic benefits are expected 1o arise from the continued wse of the asset. The gain or loss arising
on derccognition of the usset (caleulated as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the usset) is included in the income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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¢) Subsidiaries:

A subsidiary is a company, in which the Target Compuny, directly or indirectly, controls more
than half of its veting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls the
composition of its board of directors. Control exists when the Target Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of the enterprises so as to obtain
benefits from their activities.

f) Associates:

Associates are all entities over which the Target Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a sharcholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Target
Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any idemtified
impairment loss. When the Target Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associue, the Target Group discontinues recognising its sharc of further losses. An
additional share ot losses is provided for and a hability is recognised only to the extent that the
Targer Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate,

Where the Target Grouwp transacts with an associate, profits and losses are climinated to the
extent ol the Target Group's interest in the relevant associate.

g) Investment securities:

Prior to lst January., 2005, the Target Group classified its investment in unlisted shares as
investment securitics.

Investment sccurities are unlisted shares which are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at the balance sheet date to
assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts, When a decline other than
temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such securities would be reduced to its fair value.
The amount of the reduction is recognised as an expense in the income statement.

From st Janwary, 2005 onwards, The Target Group classifies its investments in the following
categaries: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments. and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at
imtial recogmuion and re-evaluate this designation at every reporting date.

h) Goodwill:

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate represemts the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Target Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilitics and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition,
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of & subsidiary is presented separately in the
balance sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for
using the equity method) is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

For the purpuse of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each

of the relevant cash-generating units. or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
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tested for impairment annually. and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating wnit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
the then o the other assets of the unit pro rata on the busis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill previousiv eliminated against the consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 "Business Combinations™ in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was climinated against the consolidated reserves in the year ol acquisition. On the
adoption of HKFRS 3. such goedwill remains eliminated against the consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in protfit or loss which all or part of the business 1o which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwil] relates becomes impaired.

i) Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fuir valoe of an acquiree’s identifinble assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost (**discount on acquisitions™):

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate for which an
agreement date is on or after Ist January, 2005 represents the cxcess of the net fair value of an
acquirce’s idemifiable assets, liabilities and comingent liabilities over the cost of the business
combination. [Yscount on acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss. A discount on
acquisition arising on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for using the equity method)
is included as income in the determination of the investor’s share of results of the associate in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

[n periods prior to Ist January, 2005, negative goodwill (excess of the Target Group’s interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, labilitics and contingent liabilities over cost)
arising from acquisitions was presented as deduction from asscts and released to income based on an
analysis of the circumstances from which the balunce resulted. In accordance with the relevant
transitional provision in HKFRS 3, the Target Group derceognised ull negative poodwill on st
January, 2005, Accordingly, adjustments of HK$1.562.000 to the unappropriated profits had been
maude,

1] Circulatory inventories;

Circulatory inventories include assets such as glasses, crockery, kitchen wtensils and staff
uniforms which need frequent replacement and are necessary to operate the business at a satisfactory
level. The initiat purchase of such assets has been capitalised but their subsequent replacement will
be wrillen off to the income statement as incurred. Due to the continuous replacement of these assets.
no depreciation is provided in accordance with standard restaurant accounting practice.

k) Inventories:

Invemories are stated at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase computed using the lirst-in-first-out method. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the sales procecds of items sold in the ordinary course of business after the balance sheet date or
to management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.
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1 Impairment:

At cach balance shect date, the Target Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assels to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss,
It the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where un impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. such that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amoum that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment Joss is recognised as income
immediately.

m} Receivables:

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment vnless the cffect of discounting
would be immaterial. in which case they are stated at cost, less provision for impuirment. A provision
for impairment of trade und other reccivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Target Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according 1o the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated luture cash flows. discounted at the effective inkerest rate. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

n) Cash and cash equivalents:

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash eyuivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and shorti-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally with three months when acquired, less bank overdrafis
which are repayable on demand and torm an integral part ot the Target Group’s cash management.

0) PPayables:

Payubles are initially measured at fair value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost.
except for short-term payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured o1 their original invoice amount.

p) Revenue recognition:

i) Sales of food. beverage, cigarette and others are recognised upon the delivery of goods
Lo customers.

i) Service fee income is recognised when the services are provided.
i) Delivery charges incame is recognised at the time when the services are provided.

iv) Rental income under operating leases are credited to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

v) Marketing service and management fee income is recognised at the time when the
services are provided. '

vi)  Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the ctfective interest rate applicable.
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q) Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income statement in the peried in which
they are incurred.

r} Taxation:
Income 1ax expense tepresents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 1ax.

The wax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profic differs from
profit as reported in the income stalement because it excludes itlems of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible.
The Target Company’s liability for current tax is culeulated using tax rates that are enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics
in the financial statements and the correspending tax base used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all axable temporary ditferences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
difterences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to recovered.

Peferred tax is calculated a1 the tax rates that are expected w apply in the period when the
linbility is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement.
except when it relates to items charged or credited direetly to cquity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

s) Leases:

Leases that transfer substantially a1l the rewards and risks of ownership ol assets 1o the Target
Giroup, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases, At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimwm lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, cxcluding the interest element, 1o reflect the purchase and
linancing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment.
and depreciated over the shorter of the lcase term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are chyrged 1o the income statement so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease lerms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leascs. Where the Target Group is the lessor. assets leased by
the Target Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
leuse term. Where the Target Group is the lessee. rentals pavable under the operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the relevant lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments are initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. When the lease payments cannot be abllocated reliably between
the land and buildings clements. the entire lease payments are included in the cost of properties as a
finance leasc.
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t} Related parties:

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related (o the Target
Group il the Target Group has the ability, dircctly or indirectly. 1o controd the party or exercisc
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
whether the Target Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant
influence, Reluted parties may be individuals (being members of key management personnel,
significant sharcholders and/or their close tamily members) or other emtities and include entities
which are under the significant influence of related parties of the Target Group where those parties
are individuals. and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of the
Target Group or of any entity that is a related party ol the Target Group.

u) Retirement benefits scheme:

Peyments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

v) Provisions and contingencices:

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required {0 settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amoum of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effecl
of the time value of money is mumerial, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected 1o be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Target Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably,

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the noles on the financial
statements, When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognized as a provision.

w) Segment reporting:

A business segment is a group of assets and operations cngaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing produets or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of scgments operating
in other cconomic environments.

The Target Group's turnover and operating results are principally generated from the restaurant
business, Accordingly, no business segment analysis is provided. In addition, the Target Group's
assets and liabilities and geographical location of the operations are principally situated at Heng
Kong and accordingly, no geographical segment analysis is presented.

X) Dividends:

Final dividends proposed by the directiors are classified as a separate atlocation of retained
profits within the capital and reserves scetion of the balance sheet. until they have been approved by
the sharcholders in a general meeting. When these dividends are approved by the shareholders and
declared. they are recognised as a liabilicy.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Target Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise rental and other deposits.
accounts receivable. amounts duc from related companies of SEL and sole director of SEL. prepaid land
lcase payments, prepayments, cash and bank balances, amounts due to vltimate holding company of SEL, an
associate of SEL. relmed companies of SEL and sole director of SEL. interest-bearing loan from a
sharcholder of the ulimate holding company of SEL. receipts in advance, accounts pavable, accrued
expenses, dividend payable, obligations under finance leases and bank borrowings. The risks associated with
these linancial instruments and the policics on how to mitigate these risks are set out below,

a) Credit risk

The Target Group's maximum exposure o credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
cach financial asset in the consolidated balance sheets. In order 1o minimize the credit risk. the Target
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue debis.
The credit risk of liguid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings.

b} Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The Target Group aims
to maintain {lexibitity in funding by keeping adequate liguid cash available.

c) Interest rate risk
The Target Group has no significant interest-earning assets.

In respect of interest-bearing liabilities. the following table indicates their effective interest
rates at the balance sheet date and the period in which they reprice or the maturity date, if carlier:

As at 3st December

003 2004

Withina  Within a Withina  Within a

period of  period of period of  period of

On demand  more than  more than On demand  maore than more than
or within a one year  (wo vears Within a or within a one year  two years  Within a
Effective  perind not hut nol but not  period of  Effective  period not but not but ant  perind of
interest  exceeding  exceeding  exceeding  more than interest  exceeding  exceeding  exceeding  more than
rale one year  iwo years  five years  five years rate one year  two years  five years  five years
HKS 000 HK3600 HRS'060 MRS 000 HES 000 HES'000 HRS'060 HKS'000

Maturity dates for
tighilities which do
not reprice befpre
mafuriy
{.0an from a

shareholder of the
ultimate halding
company ol SEL - - - - - 5% k3 - - -

Kepricing dates for
fiabilities which
reprice before
maturity

Bank loans 235%-0% 1,804 408 147 - 3%-6.375% 146 118 - -
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Mararity dates for
Labilities whick do
nut reprive before

maturity

Loun from a
sharcholder of
the ultimate
holding comp
of SEL

Repriving dates for

liabilities which
reprice hefore
mfuriny

Bank louns

As at Jst December As ut J0th Nevember
005 2006
Within a Wilhin a Within a Within a
period of  period of perind of  period of
On demand  more than more than Oo demand  more than more than
or within a ane year  two years Within a or within a one yeir  two years Within a
Effective  period not but not hut not  period of Effective  period not but not but net  period of
interesl  exceeding  evceeding  exceeding  more than interest  exceeding  exceeding  exceeding  more than
rate one year  two years  five years  five years rate one year  two years  five years  five years
HES'B00 HES'000 HKS'000 HES D0 HKS i HRS'000 HK3 00 HK§ i
i
uny
- - - - - 60.5% 700 - - -
5.5%-8.75% 2450 139 - - L75%-0.00% 2.0603 203 H0% 1.306

d) Foreign currency risk

The Target Group does not have any significant exposure to toreign cxchange risk. All of the
receivables and payables are denominated in Hong Kong daollars.

e) Fair values estimation

The sole director considers that the following financial assels and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially difterem from their fair values: rental and other deposits, accounts receivable,
amounts due from retated companices of SEL and sole director of SEL, prepaid land lease payments,
prepayments. ¢ash and bank balances. amounts due to ultimate holding company of SEL. an associate
of SEL. related companies of SEL and sole director of SEL. interesi-bearing loan from a shareholder
of the ultimate holding company of SEL. receipts in advance. accounts payable, accrued expenses.
dividend payable. obligations under finance leases and bank borrowings.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are comtinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

tactors, including e¢xpectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

estima

The Targe: Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
tes will, by definition, scldom equal the relmed actual results. The estimates and assumptions th

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts ol assets and habilities

within

the next financial year are discussed below.
(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Target Group determines whether goodwitl is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation ol the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Target Group to muke an cestimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also 1o choose a suitable discount rate in order (o
calculute the present vatue of those cash flows.

(by  Useful lives of property, plant and cquipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Targel Group estimates the useful lives of property. plant

andl equipment in order o determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful
lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience. the expected
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usage. wear and lear of the assets. as well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The Target Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the asswmptions made on useful lives continue 1o be valid.

TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Period from
15th January
2003 (date of
incorporation

of CL. Holdings
Limited) to
31st December

Year ended 3st December

Eleven months ended
30th November

2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$' 000
(unaudited)
Turnover
Sales of food. beverage,
cigarette and others 41.897 74936 98.00H 88.430 98.592
Service charges 3.845 6.450 7.803 7.059 8,388
Delivery charges
income - 32 - - -
Gross rental income - 6 — 102 6l
45.742 81,424 105.804 95.591 107.041
Other income and gains
Marketing service
income - 120 - - -
Management fee
income - 52 381 381 635
Interest income l { 68 40 157
Sundry income 251 259 931 1.010 339
LLoan waived by a
director of SEL - 972 - - -
Exchange gain - - - - 5
Amortisation of
negative goodwill
arising on acqguisition
of subsidiaries 4.542 521 - - -
Profit on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment and
prepaid land lease
payments - - - - 5.370
Write-back of provision
against interest in
associates - - 2,242 - -
4,794 1.925 3.622 1.431 7.006
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6. FINANCE COSTS

Period from
15th January
2003 (date of

incorporation of

CL Holdings

Limited} to Eleven months ended
31st December  Year ended 31st December 30th November
2003 2004 2005 2005 2000
HK$'000 HES 006G HK$'000 HKS'000 HK3'000
(unaudited)
Interest on bank everdraft - 2 - _
lrterest on bank loans 54 81 132 Y2 214
Interest on other loan - 150 - - -
Interest on loan from a
shareholder of the
ultimate holding
company of SEL I} - - - 16
Interest on obligalions
under finance leases 2 5 8 7 1
67 238 140 99 231
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is stated after charging:

Period from
15th January
2003 (date of

incorporation of

Staft salaries and
allowances
Mandatory prevident fund
contribution
Depreciation
— owned assets
— assets undcer finance
leases
Amortisation on prepaid
land lease puyments
Auditors” remuneration
Donations
Inventory costs
Operating lease rental
charges
— rented premises
(including contingent
rent)
— cquipment
Bad debts written off
Property, plant and
equipment written off
Provision against interest
in associates of SEL
Writc-off of interest in an
associate of SEL
Provision against
investment securities
Impairment loss on
goodwill

CI. Holdings
Limited) to

31st December Year ended 31st December

2003 2004
HK$ 000 HK$ 660
15,150 29,120
643 1,295
2.842 4,801
48 48

1 |

90 120

- 132
9,373 15.348
6.192 11.385
1,988 2.189
11 17

33 -

29 -
3,140 920
- 2.883

596 -

2005
HK$ 000

36.796

1.633

5.567

48

139

42

20,210

16,083

772
59

Eleven months ended
30th November

2005

HKS600

(unaudited)

33,730

1,498

5071

44

127

18,209

2006
HKS 600

42,653

1,634

4,801

a4

21

117

21,176

18.005

47
58

1.933
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8. TAX EXPENSE
a) Tax expense in the conselidated income statements represents:

Period from
15th January
2003 {date of

incorporation of

CL Holdings

Limited) to Eleven months ended
J1st December  Year ended 31st December 30th November
2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HK$'000 HKS§000 HK$'000 HKS§ 000 HK3 000
(unaudited)

Hong Kong protits tax 478 1410 1.334 1.037 1.078
Deferred taxation

(note 17) 243 (250) {250 (130} (79}

721 1.160 1084 907 999

b) Provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made at 17.5% on the cslimated assessable

profits for the relevant period.

c) Tax recoverable stated in the balance sheel represented the excess of provisional profits tax
‘ paid over the estimated tax liabilities.
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9.

d) Tax expense can be reconciled to the profit before taxation at the statutory income tax rate as
follows:

Period from
15th Janvary
2003 (date of

incorporation of

CL Holdings

Limited) to Eleven months ended
31st December  Year ended 31st December 30th November
2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKE 000 HK3'000
(unaudited)
Profit betore Taxation 2674 3.512 9419 5,899 7.584
Tax at the statutory income
tax rate of 17.3% 468 614 |.648 1,032 1.327
Tax effect of share of
resulls of asseciales - - (51) (62) (1413
Tax eftect of non-1axable
income (795) (589) {404) (9 {942)
Tax effect of
non-deductible expenses 907 L0036 5 il 515

Tux effect of temporary

differences not

recognised (10} 104 389 340 196
Tax effect of utilisation of

tax losses not recognised

in previous years - (212 {3460) (457) (353)
Tax effcel of unrecognised
tax losses 268 191 44 38 422
Others {207) 16 (N (1 25
Tax expense 721 1.160 1.084 207 999
DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Target Company since its incorporation.

The dividend payable by CL Holdings Limited, the then holding company of the companics

comprising the Targel Group to its then shareholders during the Relevant Periods and for the cleven months
ended 30th November, 2006 were as tollows:

Period from
15th January
2003 (date of

incorporation of
CL Holdings

Limited) to Eleven months ended
31st December Year ended 31st December 30th November
2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HK3 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 006 HK$'000
(unaudited)
CL Holdings Limited - — 7.200 - -
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10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leaschold
Leasehold buildings
buildings  held in Hong
held in Hong Kong on Furnilgre Kilchen
Kong on long  medium-term Leasehold and Office  Plani and and har Moter
lease lease improvements fixtures equipmenl cquipmenl  eyuipment vehicles Total
HES 000 HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000  HAKS'000  NHKS'000  HKS'0G0  HKS'060  HKS'000
Additions 791 643 2,005 2,008 206 567 3042 245 9.513
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 874 1,180 27y 874 1.275 130 4612
Depreciation () (26) (608) (692) {114} 21 (936) (141) (2,890}
Written-off - - (29) - - - - - 29)
Net book value at 31,12, 2403 159 622 2242 2,496 I 1.120 1361 235 11.206
AL3L12.2003
Cost 91 648 2540 3188 485 1441 4.7 376 13.786
Accumulated depreeiation 32) {26) (298) (697) (114) (321) (956) (4n (2.580)
Net hook value 739 622 2,292 2,496 371 1,12 3361 235 11.206
Net book value at 112004 759 622 242 2496 kX! 1,120 3,361 235 11.206
Additions ~ - 3245 1.217 278 1,584 2,261 3 8.588
Depreciation 3 {26} (1.464) (1.013%) (190) {677) (1.434) {103) (1.939)
Net book value ar 31.12.2004 127 396 4023 2700 439 2027 4,188 135 14.855
AU 3120
Cost 161 3 5785 4,405 763 3025 6578 379 22314
Accumulated depreciation (64) (52 (1.762) (1.70%) {304) {948) (2.390) (244) (7.519)
Net book value 27 396 1,023 2,700 459 2027 4,188 135 14,855
Net book value at 1.1.2005 727 396 4,023 208 459 2027 4,188 135 14.855
Additions - - 123 314 164 178 543 - 1.622
Deprecintion {3 (26} (1.93) {1.07%) (220) (712) {1515} 93 (5613
Writlen-oft - - - - - - - 4 4
Net book value at 31.12.2005 696 570 2.209 2139 497 1,493 3216 38 10.858
AL 31122005
Cost 791 648 5.908 4919 1.027 3,203 7121 34 23.961
Accumulated depreciation {95} (%) (3.699) {2780} (530} {171 {3.905; (306} (13.103) .
Net book value 696 31 1209 2139 497 1,493 306 38 10.858
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Leaschold
Leasehold buildings
huildings  beld in Heng
held in Hong Kang on Furniture Kitchen
Kong on long medium-term Leasehotd and Officc  Plant and and bhar Mator
lease lease improvements fixtures  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles Total

HKS'000 HKS 600 HE3'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Net book value at 1.1.2006 696 570 2.209 2139 4497 1.493 3216 R 10,858
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 381 378 24 133 257 - 1.380
Additions - 2.630 2.687 2.840 967 1.226 1.979 41 12,370
Depreciation - (96) [E1R3] {1.307M) 254 17539) (1.535) 47 4,845)
Disposal/written-off {695) {570) {3 (108) (15) 44) (539) - (2,002)
Net haok value at 10.11.2006 - 2153 4,435 31942 1.386 2049 31378 k) 17,761
AL 3112006

Cost - 2.630 8,987 8.260 2,292 4,588 8.452 185 35.594

Accumulated deprecialion - 96 {4.552) (4.318) (906) (2.539) (5,074) (348) {17.833)

Net book value - 2534 4435 2942 1.386 249 3378 37 17.761

Net beok value of assels held
under finanee leases
included abave:

At 30.11.2006 - - - - - - 127 - e

At 31.12.2005 - - - - - - - 16 16

A1 31122004 - - - - - - - 64 64

AL3T1.12.2003 - - - - - - - 112 112
Note

i) At 30th November, 2000, the Target Group had pledged its Icasehold buildings with aggregate net book
value of HK$2,534.000 (2005: HK$1.266,000. 2004: HKS$1.323,000, 2003:HK$1.381,000) and certain
property, plant and equipment 1o secure the Target Greup's general banking facilities,

i) The total cost of property. plant and equipment written-off/disposal of during the perind ended 30th
November, 2006 was HK$3,338,000 (2005: HK$35.000, 2004: HKS$Nil, 2003: HK$332.000).
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11.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Addition
Amortisation

Net book value at 31,12.2003

At 31.12.2003
Cost
Accumulated amostisanion

Net book value

Net book value at 1,1,2004
Amortisation

Net book value at 31.12.2004

At 31.12.2004
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Net book value at 1.1.2005
Amortisation

Net book value at 31.12.2005

At 31,12.2005
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Net book value at 1.1.2006
Addition

Disposal

Amortisalion

Net hook value at 3(111.2006

At 30.11.2006
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

— 45—

HK$'000

500
()

499

500

(1

499

499
()

498

500
(2)

498

498
)

497

500
()]

497

497
992
(497)

(21)

971

992
21

971
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Naote:
i)
As at 30th
As at 31st December November
2003 2004 2005 2006
HK3 000 HK3 000 HK$'000 HK3'000
Leasehold land in Hong Kong
Long lease 492 492 49| -
Medium-term lease 7 6 6 971
499 498 497 971
Analysed for reporting
purposes as
Non-current portion 498 497 496 950
Current portion 1 1 1 21
499 498 497 971

it} At 30th November, 2006, the Target Group had pledged its leaschold land with aggregate net
book value of HK$971.000 (2005: HK$497.000. 2004: HK$498.000, 2003: HK$499.000) to
secure the Target Group's gencral banking facilities.

12. SUBSIDIARY
As at 30th
November
2000
HK$'000

Unlisted shares. at cost 390

Details of the subsidiaries of SEL arc disclosed in Section A above.

13. ASSOCIATES

As at 30th

As at 31st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$ 000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HEF 000

Unlisted shares, at cost - 065 1,467 501
Share of post- acquisition profits less

losses - — 292 474

Provision for loss (note) (133) - - -

________ (3 .95 LI 81

Amounts duc from associates 3,131 2.408 4,409 487

Less: Provision (note) {3.131) (2,986) {744) -
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Amounts due from associates are unsecured. interest (rec and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Note:  In 2003 the Target Group agreed to provide continued financial support 1o an associale,
Marson Consuliants Limited and accordingly. the entire operating loss of HK$3.264.000 of
this associate had been provided in the financial statements for the period ended 31st
December. 2003,

Details of the associates are as follows:

Percentage of issucd ordinary shares held

Place of As at 30th  Principal
Name of associate incorporation As ul 315t December November  activity
2003 2004 2005 2006
Stormy’s Restaurant Pte. Singapore 20% - - - Restaurant
Limited
Eastech Limited Hong Kong # 0 49.23% 49.23% *  Restaurant
Marson Consultants Hong Kong 4% 40% 40% * Restaurant
Limited
Orchid International Hong Kong ~ - 50% 50%  Restaurant
Limited :

# The Target Group held 17.48% of isswed cordinary shares of Eastech Limited as at 31st
December, 2003 and was classified under investment securities in the consolidated balance

sheets,

* Eastech Limited and Marson Consultants Limited became subsidiaries of the Target Group on
31st October, 2006.

Summary financial information on associates

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit/(loss)
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKES$'000 HK$ 060 HKS$'000
2003
100 per cent 2,327 6.937 (4.610) 4,998 (780)
Target Group's
effective interest 667 2.324 {1,657) 1,359 (249}
2004
L0 per cent 1.591 5,200 (3,699) 6,108 (2.696)
Target Group's
effective interest 698 2,183 (1.485) 2.616 (1.330)
2005
100 per cent 4,336 6.178 (1.842) 10.202 1.414
Target Group's
effective interest 2033 2.710 (678) 4,524 585
2006
10} per cem 2.417 1.363 1.054 6.593 1.147
Turget Group’s
effective interest 1.208 681 527 3.297 573
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14.  INVESTMENT SECURITIES

HK$ 000

Unlisted shares, al cost 966
Amount due from investee company 820
1.786

Less: Provision {596)
Balance at 31st December. 2003 1.190

Amount due from investee company was unsecured. non-interest bearing and had no fixed terms of
repiayment.

15.  GOODWILL

As at 30th
As at 3st December November
2003 2004 2005 2006
HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$ 060

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year - - - 1.933
Impairment loss - - - (1.933)

Due 10 the substantial operming losses sustained by the subsidiaries acquired by the Target Group
during the period, the sole director considered that the carrying amount of goodwill attributable to those
subsidiaries of HK$1.933.000 at 3thh November, 2006 was fully impaired. According an impairment of
goodwill of HKS$1.933,000 was charged to the consolidated income statement.

16, NEGATIVE GOODWILL

HK$ 000
Arising on acquisition of subsidiarics 6.625
Credited 1o income statement during the period (4.542)
Net book value at 31st December, 2003 2.083
Net book value at 1st January, 2004 2,083
Credited 1o income statememt during the year (521)
Net book value at 31st December, 2004 1.562
Net book value at 1st Janwary. 2005 as onginally stated 1.562
Derecognised upon the adoption of HKFRS 3 {1.562)
Net book value at Ist Januvary 2005, as restated and 31st December, 2005 -

All negative goodwill arising on acquisition prior to Ist January, 2005 was derecognised as a result
of the adoption of HKFRS 3 on st January. 2005,

_48 —




APPENDIX 1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON SEL GROUP

17.  DEFERRED TAXATION

The compenents of deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Target Group and movements
during the relevant period are as follows:

Accelerated/
(decelerated)
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Charged/(credited) to income statement and balance .
at 31st December, 2003 259 (16} 243 ‘,
Charged/(eredited) o ingome statement (266) 16 (250) F
Balance at 31st December, 2004 (7) - )
Credited w income statement (250) - (2530)
Balanece at 31st December, 2005 (287) - (257)
Credited to income statement (79) - (79)
Balance a1 3th November. 2006 (336) - (336)
As at 30th
As at 3ist December November
2003 2004 2005 2006
HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
Deferred tax liabilities 319 92 - -
Deferred tax assets (76) {99} (257 (336)
243 (7 (257) (336)

At 30th November, 2006, the Target Group has unused tax losses of HK$E.502.000 (2005:
HKS$1.999.000, 2004: HK$4,668.000, 2003: HK$2.998.0001 available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax  asset has been recognised in respect of HKS$3312,000 (2005 HK$384.000. 2004:
HK$2,597.000, 2003; HK$1.469,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining HKS$5,190,000 {2005: HK$1.415.000. 2004: HK$2.071,000, 2003: HK$1.529.000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation,
18. INVENTORIES

[nventories comprise:

As at 30th
As al J1st December November
2003 2004 2005 2006
HKS'000 HEKS 000 HK3 000 HK$ 000
Foad, beverage, cigarette and other
merchandise stated at cost 1,516 1.913 2.586 3103
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19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The Target Group wlopts a flexible eredit policy in line with prevailing marketing stratcgy. The credit
periods granted to customers ranged from 30 days to 90 days on average. The following is an aged analysis

of trade debtors:

As al 30th

As at 31st December November
2003 2004 2005 2000
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK§ 000 HKS$ 000

Trade debtors
0-30 days 730 1.686 ' 1.222 763
31-60 days 22 18 105 23
61-90 days 1 9 17 45
over 90 days 7 [§] 3 24
760 1,719 1.347 855
Other receivables 57 359 206 232
817 2278 1,553 1.087

20. AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES OF SEL

This account represents non-trade advances which are unsecured. interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

21.  AMOUNT DUE FROM SOLE DIRECTOR OF SEL

Information disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the Companies Ordinance:

Name ot borrower: Mr. Christopher James Lenz
Position: Director of Target Company
Lender: CL Heldings Limited

Terms of advances:

— Terms of repayment Not specified
— Interest rate None
- Security Nonce

Balances of advances:

At 30.11.20006 HKSNil
L

AL 31.12.2005 HK$341.,000

AL 31.12.2004 HK$Nil

At 31.12.2003 HKENiIl
L]

Maximum balance outstanding
during the relevant period HK$341.000
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4.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks carns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY OF SEL/AN ASSOCIATE OF SEL/
RELATED COMPANIES OF SEL/SOLE DIRECTOR OF SEL

These represent interest-lree advances which are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

AMOUNT DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY OF SEL

These represent advances which are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Interest-bearing portion
Non-interest bearing portion

Interest-bearing portion carries interest at 5% to 6.5% per annum,

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors

Trade creditors
0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
aver Y0 days

As at 30th

As at 31st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK3 000 HK$ 000
328 - - 700
5.880 5.850 5.000 5,000
6,208 5,850 5.000 5,700

As at 30th

As at 3st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
3,177 4,900 4,236 7.216

- 15 6 61

- 23 12 14

2 12 11 49

3,179 4,960 4,265 7,340
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26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

As a1 3% December

As at th November

2003 2004 2008 2006
Present Present Present Present
value of value of value of value of
Minimom  minimum  Minimum  minimum  Minimum  misimum  Migimum  minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease lease lease
payment  payments paymeni payments payment  payments payvment  paymenis
HES 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HAS 000 HAS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'600
Ameunts payable within one year 63 60 65 L310] 44 43 it 8
Amounts payzble in the second to
filth years, inclusive 109 1X) A4 H) - - 18 18
Total minimum lease payments 174 160 109 It BN 43 96 96
Future tinanee charges {14} (9) (h -
Present value of mimmum lease
payment 160 100 43 96
I e I N
Current portion of obligations
urder fingnce leases 60 60 43 18
Non-current portion of obligations
under finance leases 100 4 - 18
— N R I

It is the Target Group's policy to lease coffee machines under finance leases. The lease term is 1wo
years. The leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent

rental payments.

27. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings comprise:
Bank loans
- secured
— unsecured

As at 30th

As at 31st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$'000 K3 000 HKS 000 HKS 001
2,449 555 1.081 2.520

- 639 1.508 2,200

2.449 1194 2.589 4,720
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0.

The maturity of the bank loans is as follows:

On demand or within a period not
exceeding one year

Within a period of more than one
vear but not exceeding two years

Within a period of more than two
years but not exceeding five years

Within a period of more than five
yeurs

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
50,000 shares of USSI each

Issued and fully paid:
100 shares of US$1 each

MERGER RESERVE

As at 30th

As at 31st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKE000 HK$ 000
SN LA LoJhee 2450 2.603
408 148 139 203

147 - - a08

_ _ - 1,306

_________ 333 S L. SN 1 SRt 1 ¥
2,449 1.194 2.58Y 4.720

As at 30th

As at 31st December November

2003 2004 2005 2006

HES 000 HK$ 000 fHK$ 000 HK$ 000

390 39¢) 390 390

| ! | 1

The Target Group's merger reserve represents the excess value of the shares acquired over the
censideration paid by the Targer Company under the group restructuring.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Target Group's leasehold land and buildings together with plant and equipment have been

pledged 0 buanks to sccure general banking facilities granted o the Target Group to the extent of
HK$4.000.000 (2005: HK$3.870.000. 2004: HK$2.320.000, 2003; HK$2.820.000).
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31, DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION

Details of the emoluments paid to the sole director. Mr. Christopher James Lenz, during the retevant

period are as follows:

Fees
HKS 006

For the perivd from 15th

Junuary, 2003 1 315t

Decemnber., 2003 -
Yeur ended 3151 December,

2004 -
Year ended 31st December,

2008 -
Eleven months ended 30th

November, 2005 (unaudited) -
Eleven months ended 30th

November, 2006 -

Salariuvs,

allowances
and benefits  [Hscretionary
in kinds honuses

HES 000

HKS 00}

1,293 -

1.585 -

1,757 -

1.673 -

1.945 4,244

Retirement
scheme
contributions Total
HKS'Q00 HKS'000
46 1.339
102 1.687
108 1.865
99 1.774
99 6,288

There were no amounts paid during the relevant period o the

sole director in connection with his

retirement from employment or compensation for loss of office with the Target Group. or inducement to

join. There was no arrangement under which the sole director waived or agreed (o waive any remuneration

during the relevant period.

32.  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, the emoluments ol the sole director are
disclosed in note 31. The aggregate of the emeluments of the remaining individuals are as follows:

Period from
15th January,
2003 {date of

incorporation
of CL
Holdings
Limited) to
3lst Eleven months ended
December, Year ended 31st December 30th November
2003 2004 2005 2005 2006
HEKS 000 HES 00 HKS'(00 HKS D0 HKS 000
(unaudited)
Salaries. allowunces and
benefits in kind 24099 2,663 2632 2403 3.190
Retirement scheme
contributions 72 96 110 92 97
2071 275 273 2,495 3.287
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The number of employees whe were not directors during the relevant period and who were amongst
the five highest paid employees of the Target Group fall within the following band, was set out below:

Period from
15th January,
2003 (date of
incerporation

of CL.
Holdings
Limited) to Eleven months ended 30th
3lst Year ended 31st December November
December,
2003 2004 205 2005 2006
(unaudited)
HKSNil 1o HK$ 1,000,000 4 4 4 4 4

No emolumems were paid or payable to these employees as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Target Group or as compensation for loss of office during the relevant period.
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33, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) The details of the balanees with ussociates of SEL. related companies ol SEL., sole director of

SEL and shareholders of the ultimate holding company of SEL are as follows:

Amounts due from associates

of SEL

— Marson Consultants
Limited

— Stormy’s Restaurant
Pte.Limited

- Eastech Limited

— Orchid {nternational
Limited

Amounts due from related
companies of SEL
~ Eastrend Corporation
Limited
— Sarton Limited

Amount due from sele director
of SEL
— Mr. Christopher Jumes
Lenz

Amount due to ultimate
holding company of SEL
— Sinochina Pacific Limited

Amount due to an associale of
SEL
— Eastech Limited

Amounts due 1o related
companies of SEL
— Bradford Global
Incorporation Limited
— Cardiff Enterprise Limited

Amount due to sole director
of SEL
— Mr. Christopher James
Lenz

Amounts due to sharcholders
of the ultimate holding
company of SEL
— Mr. Ravi Mohandas
— Ms. Rosalind Blud
— Asset Finance Limited
— Mr. Sunil Gidumal
— Mr. Angelo Michael

McDonnell

2003
HK3 000

1.337

1.794

(389

(1.629)

(1,348)
(1,020
{(3.030)

(510

(300}

As al st December

20064 2008
HK3'000 HKS 000
1.845 3727
563 114

- 568

- 341
(389 (389)
- 216)
(11D -
(2.279) -
(850) -
(5.000) (5,000)

As at 30th
November
2006

HK3 000

487

[
=
(%)

{267

£5.000)
(700)
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b)

c)

d)

e)

£)

2)

h)

The Target Group's sole director. Mr. Christopher James Lenz. has executed a guarantee in
favour of o bank to secure gencral banking facilities granted 1o the Target Group to the extent
of HK$1.000,000 (2005: HK$1.000.000, 2004: HK$1,000.000, 2003: HK$1.000.000).

The Target Group received management [ee income of HK$635.000 (2005: HK$381,000, 2004;
HK$52.000. 2003; HKS$Nil} from an associate. Orchid International Limited. The fee was
determined on normal commercial terms.

A lean of HKS$972.000 had been waived by the Target Group's sole director, Mr. Christopher
James Lenz, during the vear ended 315t December, 2004,

The Turget Group paid finance consultancy fee of HK$389.000 (2005: HKS$400,000, 2004:
HK$198.000. 2003: HKSNil) to a sharcholder of the ultimate holding company of SEL, Asset
Finance Limited. The fee was determined on normal commercial terms.

Interests on loan of HK$I1,000 and HK$16.000 were payable by the Target Company to Mr.
Ravi Mohundas and Mr. Sunil Gidumal respectively (sharcholders of the ultimate helding
company ol SEL} during the periods ended 31st December. 2003 and 30th November. 2006
respectively.

The Targer Group’s interest in an associate. Stormy’s Restaurant Pre. Limited. amounting to
HK$2,883.000 had been written off during the year ended 31st December, 2004,

The Target Group's key management personnel only includes the sole director, the details of
emoluments paid to this sole director is disclosed in note 31,

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the balunce sheet date, the Target Greoup had toal future commitments for minimum lease rental

payments under non-cancellable operating leases Talling due as follows:

As at 30th
As at 31st December November
2003 2004 2005 2006
HKS$'000 HKS 000 HEK$'0060 HR3'000
Rented premises:
Within onc year 6.132 8.192 11,958 19,740
In the second to fifth years.
inclusive 10,640 11.602 14,322 28.330
e 19794 . 6280 . 48.070
Equipment:
Within onc year - - 75 86
In the second to fifih years.
inclusive - — 27 144
___________ T oo 23
16,772 19,794 26.382 48.305

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from two 1o six years. Most of the leases are fixed monthly

rental. Monthly rental pavments for certain leases are based on percentage of the monthly gross sales of the
restaurants operated by the Target Group or fixed rental for that month, whichever is the greater. Monthly
rental payment of one restaurant operated by the Target Group is based on percentage on gross sale of that

restaurant.

~57-




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON SEL GROUP

d
(X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Acquisition of subsidiaries

Eleven months
ended 30th

November,
2006
HKE 000
Net liabilities acquired as at the date ol acquisition and the goedwill arising were
as follows:
Property. plant and equipment 1,381
Circulatory inventories 123
Inventories 120)
Accounts receivable 81
Deposits 409
Prepayments 37
Accounts payable (4.523)
Accrued expenses (121)
(2.473)
Goodwill on acquisition 1.933
Satisfied by cuash and the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respeet of the
acguisition of subsidiarics (540

The subsidiaries acquited on 3{st October. 2006 contributed HK$1.457.000 to the Target Group's
turnover and loss of HK$52.000 to the consolidated profit after tax for the cleven manths ended 3ith
November, 20006.

Period from
15th January,
2003 to 31st

December,
2003
HK3 000
Net assets acquired as at the date of acquisition and the negative goodwill arising
were as follows:
Property. plant and equipment 4.612
Associales 1.671
Circulutory inventorics 27
Inventorics 395
Deposits 1,596
Amount duc from related companics 6.445
Accounts recetvable and prepayments 1,753
Amount due to related companies (2.957)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8.352)
Provision for taxation (1,200)
4,490
Negative goodwill on acquisition (6.625)
Satisfied by cash and the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of subsidiaries (2.135)
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The swbsidiaries acquired on 2nd April, 2003 contributed HK$31.892,000 to the Target Group's
turnover and profit HK$4,500.000 to the consolidated profit after tax for the period from t5th January, 2003
to 31st December, 2003.

36. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH NOVEMBER, 2006

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the period include the following HKFRSs
which may be relevant to the Target Group’s operations and financial statements.

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures 15t January, 2007

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of financial st January, 2007
statements: capital disclosures

HK(IFRIC} 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 st May, 2006

HK(FRIC} 10 Imerim financial reporting and impairment 151 November, 2006

[nitial assessment has indicated that the adoption of these HKFRSs would not have a significant
impict on the Target Group's financial statements in the year of initial application. The Target Group will
be continuing with the assessment of the impact of these HKFRSs and other significant changes may be
identified as a result.

C. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no material subsequent events that occurred after 30th November, 2006 to
the date of this report.

D. SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No audited financial statements have been prepared by the Target Group in respect of
any period subsequent to 30th November, 2006.

Yours faithfulty,
Li, Tang, Chen & Co.
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong
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{(B) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON SEL GROUP
For the eleven months ended 30 November 2006

The SEL Group's capital structure as of 30 November 2006 consisted of
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$19.609.000 and borrowings of approximately
HK$4.816.000. The SEL Group has been financing its operations through shareholders’
funds and internally generated cashflow,

The sales for the first eleven months of 2006 amounted to approximately
HK$107.04 1,000, representing an increase of about 12% from the corresponding period
of 2005. While the gross profit for the first eleven months of 2006 amounted to
approximatcly HK$85.865,000, representing an increase of about 1% from the
corresponding period of 2005. While the profit before tax and after tax for the first
cleven months of 2006 amount to approximately HK$7.384.000 and HK$6,585,000,
representing a rise of about 29% and 32% respectively from the corresponding period
of 2005. The growth of turnover and gross profits are attributable to the success of
business strategies of capturing market share and cost control. The SEL Group
generated positive cash flow from operations of approximately HK$4.829.000 for the
cleven months ended 30 November 2006. The SEL Group had about 306 employees as
at the Latest Practicable Date.

For the year ended 31 December 2005

The SEL Group's capital structure as of 31 December 2005 consisted of
sharcholder’s equity of approximately HK$20.224.000 and borrowings of approximately
HK$2.632.000.

The SEL Group enjoyed sales growth of 30% during the year ended 31 December
2003 1o approximately HK$105,804.000 as compared to the ycar ended 31 December
2004. Gross profits in 2005 improved by 30% o approximately HK$85,594,000. The
profit before taxation in 2005 increased by 168% to approximately HK$9.419.000 and
the profit after taxation increased by 254% to approximately HK$8,335,000 as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2004.

Total stalf costs for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to approximately
HK$38.429.000. which represented an increase of approximately 26% as compared to

the year ended 31 December 2004.

The SEL Group generated positive cash flow from operations of approximately
HK$7.562.000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.

For the year ended 31 December 2004
The SEL Group’s capital structure as ot 31 December 2004 consisted of

sharcholder’s equity of approximately HK$10,327,000 and borrowings of approximately
HK$1.294.000.
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The SEL Group enjoyed sales growth of 78% during the ycar ended 31 December
2004 to approximately HK$81.424,000 as compared 10 the year ended 31 December
2003. Gross profits in 2004 improved by 82% 1o approximately HK$66,076,000. The
2004 profit belore taxation increased by 31% 1o approximately HK$3.512,000 while
profit after taxation increased by 20% to approximately HK$2.352.000 as compared to
the year ¢nded 31 December 2003.

Staff’ costs for the year ended 31 December 2004 amounted to approximately
HK$30.415.000.

The SEL Group generated posttive cash flow from opcrations of approximately
HKS$10.620.000 for the year ended 31 December 2004.

For the period from 15 January 2003 (date of incorporation) to 31 December 2003

The SEL Group’s capital structure as of 31 December 2003 consisted of
shareholder’s equity of approximately HK$1.664.000 and borrowings of approximately
HK$2.609.000.

The SEL Group recorded sales of approximately HK$45,742.000, gross profits of
approximately HK$36,369,000 for the period from 15 January 2003 (date of
incorporation) to 31 December 2003. The profit before taxation and the profit after
taxation for the same period amounted to approximately HK$2,674,000 and
appreximately HK$1.953.000 respectively.

Total staff costs for the period from 15 January 2003 (date of incorporation) to 31
December 2003 amounted to approximately HK$15.793.000.

The SEL Group generated positive cash flow from operations of approximately

HK$12.565,000 for the period from 15 January 2003 (date of incorporation) to 31
December 2003.
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A. THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Set out betow is a summary of the audited consolidated financial information on the
Group tor each of the three years ended 31 March 2006 and the unaudited consolidated
financial information on the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2006. The
figures for the years cnded 31 March 2005 and 2006 are extracted {rom the 2006 annual
report of the Company while the figures for the year ended 31 March 2004 are extracted
from the 2004 annual report of the Company. The figures for the six months ended 30
September 2006 arc extructed from the 2006-2007 interim report of the Company. The
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for each of the three years ended 3|
March 2004, 2005 and 2006 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Results
For the six
months ended
30 September For the year ended 31 March

2006 20006 2005 2004
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000
Turnover 381.879 831,745 687.108 670.583
Cost of sales (259.329) (621,790} {626,233) (597.626)
Gross profit 122.550 209,955 60.875 72957
Other income 4.940 10.888 1,744 8.924
Selling and distribution costs (102.236) (139.980) (52.884) (52.642)
Administrative cxpenses (3.582) (7.470) (4.595) (3.757)
Other expenses (999) (8.659) (2421 (1.979)
Share of result of an associate - - (826) (71
Finance cosls (2.541) (3.906) () (22)
Profit before taxation 18,112 40,828 1.892 24,420
[ncome tax expenses {2.448) (3.862) (339 (1.557)
Praftt for the year 15,664 36.966 1.553 22.363

Dividends
Interim, paid 4,754 5.14] 1.714 8.568
Earnings per share 911 HK cents 21,57 HK cents 091 HK cents 13,34 HK cents
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Assets and liabilities

Totul assets

Total labilities
Minority intcrests
Sharcholders’ funds

As at
30 September As at 31 March

2006 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
701,020 630,832 460,455 472.945
235,944 219,556 81,919 89,185
184 176 175 174
464,892 411,100 378,361 383,586

In financial year ended 31 March 2006, the Group adopted certain new/revised standards
and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The 2005 figures have been amended as required in
accordance with the relevant requirements. The 2004 figures have not been restated to reflect
these changes as the effect is insignificant.
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B. AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE

TWO YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

The following is the reproduction of the text of the audited consolidated financial statements of

the Group contained in pages 27 to 70 of the Company’s 2006 annual report:

“Consolidated Income Statement
For the vear ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
{Restated}
Turnover 7 831,745 687,108
Cost of sales (621,790} (626,233)
Gross profit 209,955 60,873
Other income 8 10.888 1,744
Sclling and distribution costs (159.980) (52,884)
Administrative cxpenscs (7.470) {(4,595)
Other expenses (8.659) (2,421)
Share of result of an associate - (820)
Finance costs 9 (3.906) (1)
Profit before taxation 10 40.828 1.892
Income tax expensecs 1 (3.862) (339
Profit for the year 36.966 1.553
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 36,966 1.553
Minority interests - -
36,966 1.553

Dividends {2
Interim, paid 5,141 1,714
Final, proposcd 8,568 1.713
Earnings per share 13 21.57 HK cents  0.9! HK cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the vear ended 31st March, 20006

Non-current assets
Investment propertics
Property. plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Trademark
Interest in an associate
Amount due from an associate
Available-for-sale investments
Investments at fair value through profit or

loss

Investments in sccuritics

Current assets

inventories

Properties for sale, at cost

Debtors. deposits and prepayments

Ameount due from ultimate holding company

Amounts due from customers for contract
work

Tax recoverable

Investments at fair value through profit or
loss

Investments in securities

Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cush equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors. deposits and accruals
Bills payable
Amounts due to customers for contract work
Defcrred service income
Provision for taxation
Bank borrowings

— 65 -

Notes

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23

24

25
26

27

22
23
28
29

30
30
27

3/

2000 2005
HK$ 000 HK3'000
(Restated}

7.120 5.160
55.895 24,518
2,192 4,115
82,392 -
108,000 -
- 379
10.020 -
49 588 -
- 4.440
315.207 38,612
66,991 55,262
- 1.135
100,164 70.956
1,756 711
342 939
662 574
73,279 -
- 110,815

32 -
72,399 181,451
315,625 421,843
75.164 59.662
1.881 695
264 199
20,420 20,751
942 411
52.000 121
150.671 81.839




APPENDIX I1I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Notes

Net current assets

Total assets less current liahilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital 32
Rescrves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 31!
Deferred taxation 33

Total equity and non-current liabilities

_ 66 ~

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK§ 000
(Restated)

164,954 340,004
480,161 378.616
85.678 85,678
325422 292 683
411,100 378.36!
176 175
411,276 378.536
49,000 -
19,885 80
68,885 80
480,161 378,616
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

.

Attributable to equily helders of the Company

Capital Properties Exchange
Share Share Capital redemption revaluation fluctuation  Retained Minority
capital  premium TESerye resere reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total
HRS'000  HES'000 HKS'000 MHKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'G00 HKS'O0
Al Ist April, 2004 as

originally sated 25,678 2234M 18.231 P O 1764 1.036 52420 383586 174 383.760
Effect of changes in -

accounting policics

{se¢ Note 3) - - - - (2.764) 668 2220 124 - 124
Al Ist April, 2004 as

restaled 85,678 223434 18.231 14 - 1,704 54,649 3RATI0 174 383,884
Exchange difference arising

on translation of

financial stalements

of foreign operations

directly recognised

in equity - - - - - {47} - “n I (46)
Profit for the year as

restated - - - - - - 1,553 1,553 - 1,553
Total recognised income

and expense for the year - - - - - +7) 1,553 1,506 1 1.507
Final dividend of

2004 paid - - - - - - (3.141) (5.141) - (5.141)
[nterim dividend of

2003 paid - - - - - - (1.714) (1.714) - (AR
At 3st March. 2005 85678 1234 18.231 14 - 1.657 49.347 378361 175 378536
Effect of changes in

accounting policies

(see Noie 3) - - {1 - - - 3085 2914 - 2914
AL Ist April, 2005 as

resiated 85,078 22344 18,060 14 - 1,657 32432 341275 175 381450
Exchange difference arising

on translation of

financial statements of

foreign operations

directly recognised in

equity - - - - - (287) - (287 1 (286)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 16,966 36,966 - 36.966
Total recognised income

and expense for the year - - - - - (287} 36.966 36,679 | 36,680
Final dividend of 2003

paid - - - - - - (1,13 (1.13% - (1,7113)
[nterim dividend of 2005

paid - - - - - - (3.141) (3,141) - (5.141)

At 31st March. 2006 83.678 223,434 18,060 14 - 1,370 §2,544 11,100 176 411.276
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Conselidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HK3'000
(Restated)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 40,828 1,892
Adjustments for:

Share of result of an associate - 826
Interest income (1,653) (269)
Interest expenses 3,906 1
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 15,801 4,346
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 251 253
Allowance for doubtful debts (written back)
provided (1,736) 955
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (351 450
Written-down ol inventories 1,000 518
Impairment loss on investment securities - 560
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments 2,466 -
Decrease in fair value of derivative financial
instruments 2,882 -
Impairment loss on amount due form an
associate 1,745 -
Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid lease
payments (107) -
Increase in fair value of investment properties {190 -
Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 64,842 9,532
(Increase) decrease in inventories (8,475) 11,430
{Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits and
prepayments (9,781) 5,305
Decrease of properties for sale 1,135 -
Increase in investments at fair value through
profit or loss (12,052) -
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from
customers for contract work 597 (501)
Decrease in investments in securities - 41,954
Increase (decrease) in bills payable 1,186 (1,026)
Increase {decreasc) in creditors, deposits and
accruals 4,120 (6,720)
Increase (decrease} in amounts due to customers
for contract work 05 (1,123
(Decrease) increase in deferred service income (394) 2,085
Increase in amount due from
ultimate holding company (1,045) {460)
Exchange difference 117 {394)
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Cash from operations
Profits tax paid
Profits tax refunded
Interest paid

Notes

NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

(Advance (o} repayment from an associate
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
equipment

property, plant and

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Acquisition of subsidiaries

34

Withdrawal of fixed deposit

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid
New bank loans raised
Repayments of bank loans

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

year

al beginning of the

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of the balance of
equivalents

Bank balances and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafis

at end of the year

cash and cash

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HKE 000
(Restated)
40,315 60,076
(6,636) (1,184
374 237
(3,906) (n
30,147 39,128
1,280 269
(1,366) 1.034
(24,490) (6.063)
4,065 1,600
(8,046) -
(204,531) -
- 7,800
{233,088 4,640
(6,854) (6.855)
140,000 -
(39,000 -
94,146 (6,.855)
{108,795) 56,913
181,330 124,335
(136) 82
72,399 181,330
72.399 181,451
— (121
72,399 181,330
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31st March, 2006

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public fisted company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in ihe
“Corporate Information” scction te the annual report. The Company's ultimate holding company s
Chevalier International Holdings Limited (*CIHL™. a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda,
Both CIHL's and the Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange™).

The principal activity of the Compuny is investment holding while the activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out oh pages 71 and 72.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollurs, which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied. for the first time. 2 number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting  Standards ("HKFRSs™). Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs™) and [nterpretations
(hereinalter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs™ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™) that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January. 2005.
The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation of the consolidated income
stutement. consolidated balunce sheet and consolidated statement of changes in cquity. In particular, the
presentation of minority interests has been changed. The changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resvlted in changes to the Group's accounting
policies in the following areas that have an effecl on how the results for the current andfor prior accounting
years are prepared and presented:

Business combinations

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 “Business Combinatjons™ 10 business combinations for which
the agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005 and the relevant transitional provision in HKFRS
for business combinations occurred to st January, 2005, The principal ¢ffects of the application of
HKFRS 3 1o the Group are summarised below:

Goodwill and discount on acquisition

Discount on acquisition {previously known as negative goodwill) and goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1st April. 2001 was held in reserves. In accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in HKFRS 3. the Group derecognised all negative goodwill on acquisition amoeunting 1o
HKS$198.000 and goodwill amounting to HK$27.000 on st April. 2005. previously recorded in the
cupital reserve, and transterred them to the Group's retained profits on Ist April, 2005.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 3. the capital reserve as at st April. 2005 has been
decreased by HKS171.000 while the retained profits as at Ist April, 2005 have been increased by the
same amount.

Investment properties

In the current year, the Group has. for the first time, applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property™.
The Group has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment propertics which
requires pains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of invesiment propertics to be
recogaised directly in the profit or loss for the year in which they arise. In previous years, investment
properties under predecessor accounting standard were measured at open market value. with
revaluation surplus or deficits credited or charged 1o the investment property revaluation reserve
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unless the balance on this reserve was insufficient 1o cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the
excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve
was charged 1o the income statement, Where a decrease had previously been chirged (o the fncome
statement and revaluation subsequently arose, that increase was credited to the income statement 16
the extent of the decrease previously charged. The Group has applicd HKAS 40 retrospectively. The
application of HKAS 40 has had no material effects on the results for the prior dccounting periods,
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required. The financial impact for the current year iy
set out in note 3.

Owner-occupied leasehold inferest in land

In previous years. owner-occupicd Ieaschold land and buildings were included in property,
plant and equipment and measured using the revaluation model. In the current year, the Group has
applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of tand and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the leasc payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, in which case. the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments betwecen
the land and buildings clements can be made retiably, the leasehold interests in land are reclassified
to prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried at cost and amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
and the financial impact is set out in note 3.

Properties held for own use

In previous years, properties held for own use were stated at their revalued amount, being the
fair value on the basis of their existing use at \he date of revaluation. less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations were performed with
sufficieat regularity such that the carrying amount did not differ materially from that would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase arising on revatustion
of such properties was credited to the revaluation reserve, except 1o the extent thar it reversed a
revaluation decrease of the same assct previously recognised as an expense. in which case the
increase was credited to the income statemem to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the revaluation of a property was dealt with as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating 10 o previous
revaluation of that property.

Because the revaluation increase or decrease recognised in prior years were mainly attributable
te leasehold land. the management considered it is more appropriate (o use the cost model 10 account
for the building after separation of the leasehold land upon the adoption of HKAS 17 us discussed
above, Accordingly, the buildings are carried at their cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses after recognition. This change in accounting policy has been  applied
refrospectively and the financial impact is set out in note 3.

Deferred taxes related to investment properties

In previous years. deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued investment propertics were
assessed on the basis of the tax consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying amount
of the properties through sale in accordance with the predecessor Interpretation. In the curremt yeur,
the Group has applied HK(SIC) Imerpretation 21 “Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciable Assets™ which removes the presumption that the carrying amount of investment
properties is 1o be recovered through sale. Therefore, the deferred tax consequences of the investment
propertics are now assessed on the basis that reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects 1o recover the value of the property at cach balance sheet date.
In the absence of any specific transitional provisions in HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, this change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. However. the application of HK(SIC)
Interpretation 21 has had no material effects on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.
Accordingly. no prior year adjustment has been required.
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Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applicd HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentution™ and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™. HKAS 32
requires retrospective application. HKAS 39, which iy effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Ist January, 2005, generally docs not permit the recognition. derecognition or measurement of
tinancial assets and Habilies on a retrospective basis, The application of HKAS 32 has had no
material impact on how financial instruments of the Group are presented tor current and prior
accounting periods. The principal effects resulting from the implementation of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

Investments in debt and equily securities

The Group has applicd the relevamt transitiomal provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and tinancial liabilities that are within the scope of
HKAS 39

By 3lIst March, 2005, the Group classified and measured its investments in debt and equity
securities in accordance with the benchmark treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
24 ("SSAP 247), Under SSAP 24, the Group's investments in debt or equity securities were classified
a8 Tinvestment securities” or “other investments™ as appropriate. Investment securities were carried at
cost less impairment losses while other investments were measured at fair value with unrealised gains
or losses included in profit or loss for the period in which gains or losses arose. From st April. 2005
onwards, the Group has classified and measured its investments in debt and equity securities as
“ivestments al Yair value through profit or less™ or “available-for-sale investments™ in accordance
with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, “investments at foir value through profit or loss™ and
“available-for-sale investments™ are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss and equity respectivety. Available-tor-sale equity investments that do not have quoted
market prices in an active market and whose tair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less impairment loss after initial recognition.

On st April. 2005, the Group classified and measured its investments in debt and equity
securities in accordance with the wransitional provisions off HKAS 39. As a result, the invesunents
held for truding amounting 0 HKS$110.815.000 were reclassified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and investment in unlisted cguity securities amounted 10 HK$4,400,000 were
reclassified (o available-for-sale investments at 1st April, 2005 as disclosed in note 3.

Financial assets and financial labhilities other than debr and equity securities

From Ist April. 2005 onwards. the Group has classified and measured its financial assets and
financial liabilities other than debt and equity securitics which were previously outside the scope of
SSAP 24 in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 39. Financial assets of the Group under
HKAS 29 are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profic or loss™. “availabie-lor-sale
financial assets™ or “loans and receivables™. Financial liabilities are generally classitied as “financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss™ or “other financial liabilities™. The Grouwp's financial
liabilitics comprise “other financial liabilities™ which are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method after initial recognition. The Group has applicd the relevam trunsitional provision in
HKAS 39. However, there has been no material effect on how the results for the current accounting
period are prepared and presented.

Dertvatives

By 3lst March, 2005, the derivative finuncial instruments had not been recognised on the
balance sheet. From Ist April. 2005 onwards, all derivatives that are within the scope of HKAS 39
are required to be carried at fair value at each balance sheetl date regardless of whether they are
deemed as held for trading or designated as effective hedging instruments. Under HKAS 39,
derivatives including embedded derivatives which should be separately accounted for from the
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non-derivaive host contracts are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets or financial liabilities,
unless they qualily and are designated as effective hedging instruments, Fair values of derivatives
deemed as held for trading are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,

The Group has not recognised the derivative linancial instruments on the bulance sheet prior to
3lst March, 2005, The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39. On st
April. 2005, the Group recognised the fair value of the derivative financial instrument, foreign
currency forward contract deemed as held-for-trading financial assets, amounting to HKS$2.914.000,
on the halance sheet and a corresponding adjustment to the Group's retained carnings. The financial
impact oo application of the standard has decreased the profit for the current year by HK$2.882.000.

New accounting standards not vet applied

The Group has not early applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these standards, amendmemts and interpretations. Other than the adoption of
HKAS 3% and HKFRS 4 (Amendments) “Financial gusrantee contracts™, the Directors of the
Company so far concluded that the application of these new standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group. HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
(Amendments) “Financial guarantee contracts™ require financial guarantee contracts which are within
the scope of HKAS 39 to be measured at fair value upon initial recognition. The Group is still not in
the position 1o reasonably estintate the impact that may arise from HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
(Ameadments).

HKAS 1 (Amendment) !
HKAS 19 {Amendment)

Capital diselosures

Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and
disclosures®

HKAS 21 tAmendment)

HKAS 3% (Amendment)

Net investment in a foreign operation’

Cash flow hedge accounting of lorecast
intragroup transactions’

The fair value option”

Financial guarantee contracts®

HKAS 39 {Amendment)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendmenis)

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources”
HKFRS 7 Firancial instruments: Disclosures'

HK{FRIC) — INT 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease?

Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation
funds?

Liabilities arising from puarticipating in a specific
market-waste electrical and ¢lecironic

HK{FRIC) — INT 5

HK(IFRIC) - INT 6

equipment?
Applying the restatement approach under HKAS
29 financial reporting in hyperinflationary

HK(IFRIC) - INT 7

cconomies®
Scope of HKFRS 2°
Reassessment of cmbedded derivatives®

HK(IFRIC) — INT &
HK(FRIC) - INT 9

or after Ist January. 2007.

Effective for annual periods beginning on

[F}

Ettective for annual periods beginning on

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on
+ Effective for annual periods beginning on
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on
f

~ Effective for annual periods beginning on

or after Ist Januvary, 2006,
or after 1st December, 2005,
1st Muarch, 2006.

st May, 2006.

15t June, 2006.

or after
ar after
or afler
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3.

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The effects of the changes in the accounting policies deseribed in note 2 on the results Tor the curremt

and prior years (included in other expenses) are as tollows:

Non-amortisation of goodwill

Decrease in depreciation arising from adoption of cost model of

owner-occupied buildings

Decrease in valuation of properties for owan vse arising from

adoption of cost model of owner-occupied buildings

Drecrease in fair valoe of derivative financial instruments

loss

Gains arising from changes in fair value of investment properties

Decrease in profit for the year

2005 are summarised helow:

Balance sheet items

Property. plant and equipment

Prepzid lease payments

Investments in seeurities

Available-for-sale investments

Derivative financial instruments

Investments al fair value through
profit or loss

Total effects on assets and
liabilities

Retained profils
Capital reserve
Exchange fluctuation reserse
Properties tevaluation reserve

Minofity interesis

Total effects on equily

Minority interests

2006 20058
HKS 000 HK$ 000
3,391 -
94 82
- (2.293)
(2.882) -
Decrease in Tair value of investments at fair value through profit or
(4.730) -
190 -
(3.937 {(2.211)
The cumulative ctfects of the application of the new HKFRSs on 31st March, 2005 and Ist April.
As at 3181 'f‘(‘itf'=‘i>t't:l"t‘ b otective st
March, adjutients Asut 3st Lrospective adjustments As at
2005 HKAS 16 AMarch, Ist April,
(originally and 2005 2005
stated) HKAS | HKAS 17 {Restated) HKFRS 3 HKAS 39 [Restated)
TN 060 HE" 000 HE 000 HE'000 HK 000 HE G0 HK 600
31403 - (6,887 24518 - - 23518
- - 4,115 4113 - - 4.5
113.253 - - 113.255 - (115.255) -
_ - - - 4,440 1,440
- - - - - 24914 2,014
- - - - - 110,815 110,815
146.660 - 2.772) 141.888 - 2914 146.802
49,338 - 9 49,347 i7l 2914 32432
18.231 - - 18.231 o - 18.060
959 - ah¥ 1.637 - - 1.657
3449 - (340} - - - -
- 175 - 173 - - 175
12,007 i75 12170 69410 - 2914 72324
175 (115} - - - - -
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The financial effects of the application of the new HKFRSs to the Group's equity on 1st April. 2004
are summarised below:

As

Adjustments

originally
stated HKAS 1 HKAS 17 As restated
HKS'000 HK3$ 000 HK$'000 HK3 000
Retained profits 52.429 - 2.220 54.649
Exchange fluctuation reserve 1.036 - - 668 1.704
Properties revaluation reserve 2,764 - (2.764) -
Minority interests — 174 - k74
Total effects on equity 56.229 174 124 56,527

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention excepl for
investment properties and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values. as
explained in the accounting policies set out below,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition. the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

{a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements ol the Company and
its subsidiarics.

The resulis of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effeclive date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal. as appropriate.,

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority tntercsts in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are prescented separately from
the Group's equity therein. Minority intercsts in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable 1o the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except 1o the exient that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment (o cover the losses.

() soodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate for which the agreement date
is on or after Ist January. 2005. representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to

each of the relevant cash-generating unit ("CGU"™). or groups of CGUs. that arc expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
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impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year, When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than the carrying amount of the unit. the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill altocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment Joss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

(c) Interests in associates

The results and asscts and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these finuncial statements
using the cquity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associales are
carricd in the consolidated balance sheet wt cost as adjusted for postacquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associates. less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that. in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a hability is recognised only to the exient that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group. profits and losses are
climinated to the extent of the Group's interest in the relevant associate.

(d)  Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group
becomes a parly o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the assets expire
or the financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership ol the financial assets. On derccognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics are derccognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged. cancelled or expired. The difference hetween the carrving amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss,

(i} Financial asyets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two sub-categories.
including financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At ecach balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the peried in
which they arise.
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(i}

Loans and reccivables

Loans  and  receivables  are  non-derivative financial  assets  with  fixed or
determinable paymemts that are not quoted in an active markel. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables including debtors, amounts
due from ultimate holding company and amount due from customers for contract work
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. less any identificd
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and s measured as the difterence between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. subject to a
restriction that the carrving umount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Available-lor-sale investments

Availuble-for-sule investments are non-derivatives that are either destgnated or not
classified as investments at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
held 1o maturity investments. At cach balance sheet date subsequent to  initial
recognition, available-lor-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Chunges in tair
vilue are recognised in cquity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, a1 which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss. Impuairment losses on
avatlable-for-sale equity investments will not reverse through profit or loss in subsequent
periods, For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an inercase in the fair value of the invesument can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unguoted cquily instruments.
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet
date subsequent 1o initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective cevidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
ratc of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivatents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. and other
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o a known amount of
cash and are subject to an nsigoificant risk of changes in value,

Financtal liabilities

Other than derivatives which are deemed as linancial liabilities held for trading. the

Group’s tinuncial liabilities mainly include creditors. bills payable and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. using the effective interest rate method.

{iii)

Equiry instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recerded m the proceeds received. net of

direct issue costs,
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fivi  Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign currency forward
contracts) to reduce its risks associated with forcign currency fluctuations. Derivative Tinancial
instruments which do not qualily for hedge accounting are deemed as financial assets held for
trading or financial liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are separated from the relevant
host contracts and deemed as held-for-trading when the econemic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts. and the
combined contracts arc not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all other
circumstances. derivatives embedded are not separated and are accounted for together with the
host contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group needs to separale an
embedded derivative but is unable to measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined
contracts are treated as held-tor-rading.

()  Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at c¢ost. including any direetly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, lnvestment properties arc measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

() Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment josscs.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method or reducing balance method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arisc from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal prececds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

The property, plunt and cquipment are depreciated on the following methods. after taking into
aecount their estimated residual valuc at the following rates per annum:

Straight-line mcthod:

Frechold land Nil

Buildings Over the sherter of the term of the lcase, or
20-50 years

Store machine 20%

Store and other equipment Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 10%
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Reducing balance method:

Initial
charge upon Annual
purchase charge
Muachinery. 1ools and equipment 20% 40%
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles 20% 20%

{g) Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premium paid for use of land. Prepaid lease payment
is charged to income statement over the term of relevant land leases on a straightline basis.

() Trademarks

On recognition, trademarks acquired from business combinations arc recogniscd at fair value.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumaulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derccognition of trademarks are measured as the dilference
beiween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment by comparing the carrying
amount of the trademarks with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of a trademark is estimated to be less
thun its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the trademark is reduced to its recoverahle amount.
An impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the trademark is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss becn
recognised for the asset in prior years.

(i Properties for sale

Propertics held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
the cost of acquisition of properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is estimated by
management based on prevailing market conditions or when a binding sales agreement is executed,
by reference to the agreed selling prices.

(j)  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost und net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

(k) Installation contracts

Where the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date,
as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the
estimated total contract costs, cxcept where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that
they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is

recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Centract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings. the surplus is shown as “amounts due from customers for contract work™. For
contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recogniscd profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is shown as “amounts due to customers for centract work™. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the balance sheel. as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included
in the balance sheet under “debtors. deposits and prepayments™.

(n Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.
Scrvice income is recognised when services are provided,

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis. by reference o the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights o receive
payment have been established.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a binding sales agreement.
(m) Operating lease

Leases where substuntially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets remain with the
lessors are accounted for as operating lcases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leuases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

(n)  Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as finance costs and included in profit or loss in period in
which they are incurred.

{0) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of cach individual group entity, transactions in the foreign
currencies other than the functional currcncy of that entity are recorded in its functional currcncy at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monctary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair valuc that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

—80-




APPENDIX 11 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monctary items, and on the translation of

monetary items, arc rccognised in profit or toss in the period in which they arise. except for

exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a

. foreign operation, in which cuse. such cxchange difierences arc recognised in equity in the

consolidated {inancials stutements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monctary

items carried at fair vatue are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising

on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which case, the exchange differences are ulso recognised directly in equity.

For the purposcs of presenting the consolidated fnancial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group's foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars. the presentation currency of
the Company at the rate of cxchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
signiticantly during the period, in which case. the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in the translation reserve.
Such exchange dilferences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

{(p)  Retirement benefits cosis

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(qy Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance shect date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liubilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
tuxable profit. and is accounted for using the balance sheet liahility method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporury differences and deferred tax assets arc recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
ditference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and labilities in a trunsaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group as a parent is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the '
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tuxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss. except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred 1ax is also

dealt with in equity.
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(r} Impairment

At cach balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
which have an indefinite lifc to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount. the carrying amount of the assel is reduced to ity recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrying amount of the asset except for
goodwill is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, butl so that the increased
currying amouni does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately. Impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent period.
The accounting policies for impairment of poodwill and trademark are set out in details in their
respective policies.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

balance sheet date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusument to the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities within the next financial year. are discussed below.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evalualion of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ubtimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of cach customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Alowances for inventories

The management of the Group mukes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
that are identitied as no longer salable. The management estimates the net realisable value of its
trading merchandise based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-hy-product basis at each balance sheet date and
makes allowuance for obsolete ttems.

Impairment of goodwill and trademark

In determining whether goodwill and trademark are impaired, an estimation of the value-in-use
of the cash-gencrating units to which goodwill and trademark have been allocated is required. The
value-in-use catculation regquires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit with a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than cxpected, @ material impairment loss may arise. No
impaisment  loss has been identified for the goodwill and trademark with cwrying amounts
HK$82.392,000 and HK$108.000.000 respectively as at 31st March, 2006.

Details of the impairment testing on goodwill and trademark are set out in note 37,
Income tax

No deferred 1ax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$478.703,000 due to
the unpredictability future profit streums. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future protits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generaled are more or less than expected, additional recognition
or reversal ol deferred tax assets may arise. which would be recognised in the income statement for
the period in which it takes place.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include trade and other debtors. amount due from
ultimate holding company. bank balances and cash. trade and other creditors, bills payable, bank borrowings
and investments. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management maniges and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and ctfective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure te credit risk in the event of the counterpartics’ failure to
perform their obligations in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consclidated balance sheet. The management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of cach individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses arc made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the management of
the Group is responsible to determine credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensurg that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of its trade debtors. with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on bank deposits and investment in financial instruments is himited because the
counterpartics are banks, financial institutions or corporations with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Market risk
t) Foreign currency risk

Certain trade payables of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies. In order to reduce
the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations, the Group has entered into foreign currency
forward contracts against its exposures to changes of foreign exchange rate. However, as these
foreign currency forward contracts do not qualify for hedging accounting, they are deemed as
financial assets or liabilities held for trading. The management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange cxposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
Arise.

(if}  Imterest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly relates to floating-rate bank borrowings,
investments in debt securities at floating rates and structured deposits linked with constant maturity
swap rate or LIBOR. The maragement monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the nced arise.

(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity and debt securily price risk through its investments in equity
securities. The management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio ef investments with
different risk profiles.
Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management and flexibility in funding by

keeping sufficient cash and cash equivalent, readily realisable marketable securities and to have
committed short-term and medium-term credit lines available.
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The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient committed and wncommitted
general credit facilities from banks for financing capital commitments in the near fulure and for
working capital purposes.

7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amount received and receivable for goeds sold. provision of services and
investment income during the year and is analysed as follows:

2006 2005

HK3'000 HKS 000

Sale of computer and business and coffce machines 477.493 474.243
Sale of food and beverage 173,208 -
Provision of mairtcnance services 77,779 100.617
Trading of sccuritics 94311 101,988
[nterest income from debt securities and structured deposits 8.954 10,260
831,745 687,108

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business and geographical segments is set oul in note 35,

8. OTHER INCOME

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Included in other income are:

Interest from bank deposits

Exchange gain

Profit on disposal of properties for sale

Gross rental income from properties of HK$715,000 (2005:
HK$383,000) less outgoings

FINANCE COSTS

The amount represents interest on bank loans repayable within 5 years,
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10,

estimated assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit belore taxiation has been arrived at after charging (erediting):

Allowance of amount due from an associate

(Written back) allowance for bad and doubtiul debts

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Auditors” remuneration

Change in fair valee of derivative financial instruments

Realised und unrealised fair value loss of investments at fair value
thraugh profit or loss

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of available-lor-sale
investments

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises

Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid lease payments translerred o
investment properties

Suall costs (notwe)

Write-down of inventories

Gross carmings trom leasing of assets other than properties of
HKS$5, 114,000 (2005: HK54.795.00(h less outgoings

2006
HKS 000

1,745
(1.736)
251
1.086
2.882

729
15801
(351

2.466
(194))
46,885

(07
112,221

1.000

(1.659)

2005
HKS'000
(Restated)

8.271
4.346
450

8.457

78.763
518

{4.358)

Note: Details of directors” emoluments included in siall costs are disclosed in note 36. Redundancy
payments of HK$6.000 (2005: HK$729.000) are included in staff costs.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The charge (credit) comprises:
Current tax

Hong Kong
Overscas

Deferred taxation (noje 33)

2006 2005
1K 000 HK$'000
3,263 228
318 410
3.581 638
281 (299)
3.862 339

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculmed at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable 1o the relevant local

legislation on the estimated assessable profits.
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled from the profit before taxation per the consolidated
income statement as follows:

26006 2005
HK3 000 HKS'000
(Restated}
Profit before taxation 400,828 1.892
Tux ut the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% (note) 7.145 331
Tax effect of share of result of an associate - 145
Tax effect of non-deductible expenscs for tax purposes 4.149 1.935
Tax elfect of non-taxable income for tax purposcs (2.962) (2.208)
Tax cffect of ax [osses not recognised 1.053 2.368
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (4.886) (1.468)
Tux effect on vtilisation of temporary differences not recognised (906) (909)
Tax cffect of deductible temporary differences not recognised 471 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other
Jurisdictions (115 139
Others (87) 6
Tax charge for the year 3.862 339

Nose:  The domestic income tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is
substantially bascd.

12. DIVIDENDS

2006 2005
HES 000 HKS'000
Dividend paid:
— Interim dividend of HK$(.03
(2005: HK$0.01) per ordinary share 5.141 1.714
Dividend proposed:
— Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05
(2005: HK$0.01) per ordinary share 8,568 1,713

A final dividend of HKS(3.03 {2005 HK$0.01) per share has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to the approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

13.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic carnings per share are calculated based on the Group’s net profit atributable to equity holders

of the Company of HK336.966,000 (2005: HK§1.553,000) and on 171.355.871 (2005: 171.355.871)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted carnings per share arc presented as thc Company has no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the 1wo years ended 31st March, 2006.
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The impact on the previeusly reported basic carnings per share for the year ended 31st March. 20035

as a result of changes in accounting policies as stated in note 3 is as follows:

Reporied figure before adjustments
Adjustments arising from changes in accounting policies

Restated figure

HK cents

The impact on the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31s1 March, 2006 due to the change in

accounting policies as stated in note 3 is a decrease in earnings of 2.30 HK cents per share.

14, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2006 2005

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Fair value at 1st April, 5.160 5.160
Transferred trom property. plant and equipment 1.770 -
Increase in fair value 190 —
Fair value at 31st March. 7.120 5.160

The Group’s investment properties are situated in the Mainland China under medium-term leases.

The Ffair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March. 2006 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independem
qualified professional vajuers not connecied with the Group. Messrs, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited are
members of The Hong Koeng Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS™), and have appropriate qualifications and
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms
W the Valuation Standards on Properties of the HKIS. was arrived at hy reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar properties,
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Overseas Furniturtj. Mixlures,
praperties office equ:pm.em and
on Machinery, Store and mator vehicles
Leasehald freehold  tools and other Store  for own
lund  Buitdings land equipment cquipment  machine use  for lease Total
HKS000  HKS'H00  HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000 RHKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
COST
Av Ist April. 2004 as
originally stated 4,308 4259 8,563 13.139 - - 16,480 7.300 54,511
Opening balance adjustments
of revaluation surplus - 1.787 1.270 - - - - - 3.057
Reclassification to prepaid
lease payments {4.368) - - - - - - - {4,368}
At Lst April, 2004 as restated - 6.046 9.835 13,139 - - [6.480 1700 53,200
Exchange adjustments - 11 64 28 - - 51 20 175
Additions - - - 463 - - 324 507 6.063
Disposals - (630) - (3.869) - - 14.069) (876} {9444
At st March, 2003 - 5.427 9.899 9,761 - - 12,091 11016 49,994
Exchange adjustments - 24 35 13 130 sl 23 12 288
Reclassification te investment
propertics - (841) - - - - - - (841)
Acguired on acquisition of
subsidiaries - - - - 20,098 3.980 - 90 26.168
Additions - - - 560 10,992 3.600 126 8012 24,490
Disposals - (080 - (1.236) [2,280) (353) (1.091) (3.136) (8.796)
At st March, 2006 - 3.930 9,934 9.078 28.990 9.57% 12,049 17.794 91,303
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
At 1st April. 2004 as
originally stated - - - 10.878 - - 12,642 1,949 25469
Opening balance adjustments - 1417 1.516 - - - - - 2933
AL Ist April. 2004 as restated - 1417 1516 10878 - - 12.642 1.949 28402
Exchange adjustments - [ 10 35 - - 50 2 122
Provided for the year - 182 124 1,004 - - 946 2090 4.346
Etiminated on disposals - - - 13,529 - - (3.652) 219 {1.354)
AL 31s1 March, 2005 - 1.603 1.630 8,394 - - 9986 184 25476
Exchange adjustments - 7 6 25 - - 30 b2l 92
Reclassification to investment
properties - (151) - - - - - - (131)
Provided for the year - 182 124 833 8.214 2.230 714 3504 15.801
Eliminated on disposals - (R3] - (1,101 (1.718) (230 sl {1679 {(5.810)
At 31st March, 2006 - 1.530 1,780 8.151 6.496 1.977 4719 5.695 35408

CARRYING VALUES
AL st March, 2006 - 2,400 8.154 927 22,444 7.601 207 12.099 53,895

At 3st March. 2003 - 3822 8,249 1.367 - - 3,005 8.075 24518
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16.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2006 2005
HK3'000 HK$ 060

The Group's prepaid tease payments comprise:
Leasehold land in Hong Kang under medium-term lease 1.490 2417

Leaschold land in Mainland China under
Long-term lease 642 654
Medium-term lease - 973
Overseas leasehold land under short-term lease 60 71
2,192 4,115
17.  GOODWILL,

HK§ 000
At Ist April, 2004 and 2005 -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries §2.392
At 3s March, 2006 82.342
L —

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 37.
18. TRADEMARK

The trademark was purchased as part of a business combination as detailed in note 34 during the
year. The trademark is legully having a life of certain periods but is renewable at minimal cost. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark continuously and has the ability to
do s, Various studies including market trends and competitability of similar food and beverage market have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports that the rademark has no foreseeable time
limit over which the branded coffee shops are expected to generate cash flows for the Group.

As a result. the trademark is considered by the managememt of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life. The trademark will not be amortised until its useful life is dectermined to be finite upon
reassessment of its uselul life annually by the management. Instead it will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of impairment testing arc
disclosed in note 37,

19.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate 105 105
Share of post-acquisition losses (105) (105)
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As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had interest in the following associate:

Effective
percentage of
Form of Country of registered
business incorporation capital held
Name structure  and operation by the Group Principal actlivities
C(l
Guangzhou Chevalier Corperate Mainland 24 Trading of office
iTech Limited China cquipment and

provision of
maintenance

Services

The summarised financial information in respect of the associate is set oul below:

2006 2005

HKS'000 HEK$ 000

Totul assets 832 §,040
Total liabilitics (4.282) {4.361)
Net liabilities (3.450) (3.321
Revenue 1.633 26,114
LLoss for the year (58) (3.452)
Group's share of net assets of the associate - -
Group's share of loss of the associute for the year - (826)

The Group has discontinued recognition af its share of loss of the associate. The amount of
unrecognised share of loss for the year and accumulated unrecognised share of tosses ol the associate
amounted to HKS14.000 and HK$828.000 (2005: HK$2.000 and HK$797.000) respectively.

20.  AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$ 000

Amount due from an associate 3,258 1.513
Less: allowance for doubtful amount (3.258) {1.134}

379

The amouni due from an associate was unsccured, interest free and not expected to be repaid within
twelve months after the balance sheet date.




APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

21.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March, 2006 comprise the followings:

HK$ 000

Unlisted equity sccurities, at cost less impairment 2.270)
Investment in a venture capital fund, at fair value 7.750
10,020

Unlisted equity sccurities are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The fair vatue of investments in a venture capital
fund was calculated based on the Group's attributable interest in the fair value of the fund’s net assets.

22.  INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Investments at Fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March. 2006 comprise the following:

HKS'000
Held for trading:

Equity securities, listed overseas 4,553
Debt securities listed overseas 31,430
Drebt securitics. unlisted 37.296
73,279

Designated as investments at fair value through profit or loss:
Structured deposits 45,588

122,867

Represented by:

Non-current assets 49,588
Current asscts 73.279
122,867

The fair values of the above investments arc determined cither based on the quoted market bid price
available on the relevant exchange or the market prices provided by the relevant financial institutions.

The above structured deposits are denominated in United States Dollars with fixed interest rates for

the first year and the remaining years with interest rates linked with either constant maturity swap rate or
LIBCR.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investments in securities as at 31st Margh, 2005 are set out below. Upon the application of HKAS 39
on st April, 2005. investments in sccurities were reclassified to appropriate categories under HKAS 39.
Accordingly, an amount of HK$4.440,000 and HK$110.815,000 were reclassified to available-for-sale
investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

HK3 000
Investment securities:
Equity securities, unlisted 4.440
Other investments:
Equity securities at market value, listed in Hong Keng 267
Debt securities at market value, listed overseas 5,838
Debt securitics, vnlisted 85.355
Mutual funds, valisted 19,355
115,255
Carrying valucs analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets 4,440
Current assets 110,815
115.255
24. INVENTORIES
2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Inventories held for resale 57.580 50.156
Consumable stores 9411 5,106

66.991 55.262

The cost of invemtorics recognised as an expense during the year wus HK$424.540.000 (2005:
HK$381,115.000).

A reversal of previous write-down of inventories of HK$7.631.000 (2005: HK$3.601.000) has been
realised on sales of these inventories during the year.
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25.  DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The
average credit period granted 1o the customers is 60 days except for sales of food and beverage at cofice
shops which are mainly on cash basis, The following is an ageing analysis of rade debtors net of allowance
of doubtful debis at the balance sheet date:

2006 2005

HKS'000 HKS 000

0 — 60 days 49,348 47.891
61 — 90 days 2,533 1.871
Over 90 dayx 4,745 2,654
56.626 52,416

The carrying amounts ol the Group’s trade and other debtors approximate o their fair values.
26.  AMOUNT DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount duc from ultimate holding company is unsecured. interest-free and repayable on demand.
The Directors consider that its carrying amount approximates to its [air value.

27, AMAOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000

Contracts in progress a1 the balance sheet date:
Contragt costs incurred 40.449 48.626
Recognised profils less losses 127 (6.492)
4(.576 42134
Progress billings (40).,498) {41.,394)
78 740

Represented hy:

Amourds due from customers included in current assets 342 939
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities (264) (199)
78 740

At 31st March, 2006, retentions held by customers for contract work and advance payments received
trom customers {or contract work amounted to HKS42.000 (2005; HK$2.305.000) and HKS$162.000 (2005:
Nil) respectively.
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28.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year. the Group has used loreign currency forward contracts to hedge against certain of its
trade payables that were denominated in foreign currencies. These derivatives are not qualified for hedge
accounting.

At 31st March, 2006, the Group had entered into foreign currency forward contracts denominated in
United States dollars with total notional amount of HKS$58.200.000 (2005: HK$234.392.000).

All derivatives of the Group are measured at fair value at cach balance sheet dute. Their fair values
are determined based en the market prices for equivalent instruments guoted by the counterpartics at the
balance sheet dute and from the financial models based on principal sum and estimate about fure market
conditions.

29, BANK BALANCES AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits carrying interest at prevailing
market rate. The Directors consider that the carrying values of the amounts at the balance sheet date

approximate to their fuir values.

Include in bank balances and cash is an amount of HK$29.720.000 (2005 HKS$49.061.0000
denominated in United States Dollars.

30. CREDITORS AND BILLS PAYABLE

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade creditors and bills payable at the balance sheet date:

2006 2005

HKS 000 HK$000

(0 — 60 days 3166 20.901
61 — 90 days 333 1.445
Over 90 days 2917 2200
Trade creditors and bills payable 34416 24.556

The carrying amounts ol the Group's trade and other creditors and bills payable approximate to their
fair values.
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3. BANK BORROWINGS

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK3'000
Bank overdralt - 121
Bank loans 101,000 -
101,000 121
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year 52.000 121
More than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years 12,000 -
More than 2 years but not cxceeding 5 years 37,000 -
101,000 121
Less: amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities (52.000) (121}
49,000 -

The bank borrowings were unsecured. carried fleating interest rate at HIBOR plus certain margin per
annum. The average effective interest rate for the current year was 4.3% per annun.

The Tair values of the bank borrewings approximate o their carrying amounts.

32.  SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005
HKS'000 HKS 000
Authorised;
240,000,000 (2005: 240.000.000) ordinary shares of HK$0.50
2005 HK$0.50) cach 120,000 120,000
Issued and tully paid:
171,355,871 (2005: 171.355.871) ordinary shares of HK$0.50
(2005: HK$0.50) each 85,6078 85.678
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon

during the year:

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Trademark Others Total
HK3 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3'000
At lst April. 2004 536 (107) - (5 379
Charge (credit) to income
for the year 388 (651) - (36) (299}
At 31st March, 2005 924 (758) - (86) 80
Arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries 835 (211) 18.900 - 19.524
Charge (credit) to income
for the year 441 {2000 - 40 281
At st March, 2006 2.200 (1.169) 18,900 (46) 19.885

At 31Ist March, 2006, ne deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax losses of HK$478,703,000 (2005: HK$500.605.000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$761.000 (2005: HKS$2,318,000) that will expire in
2011, Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st March, 2006. the Group hud deductible temporary difference of HK$26,148.000 (2005:
HK$28.633.000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differcnce can be utilised.
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34, ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 20th May, 2005, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited {“Pacitic Coffee™) at a consideration of HK$203.963.000. The acquisition has been accounted for

using the purchase method.

The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Acquiree’s

carrying Fair value Fair value

amount adjustments of net assets

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$§'000
Nel assets acquired:
Property. plant and equipment 26,168 - 26.108
Trademark - 108,000 108,000
Inventorics 4,329 - 4.329
Debtors, deposits and prepuyments 17.384 - 17.384
Bank and cash balances 1,432 - 1.432
Provision for taxation (3.124) - (3.124)
Deferred services income (63) - (63)
Deferred 1ax liabilities (624} (18,900 (19.524)
Creditors, deposits and accruals (10,031} - (10.031)
Contingent habilities - (1.000) (1,000}

35,471 88.100 123.571
Goodwill 82392
205,963
Total costs:
Purchase consideration satistied by cash 203,084
Costs incurred for the acquisition 2,279
205,963
e

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid (205.963)
Bank balances and cash acquired 1.432

(204.531)
L —
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Pacific Coffee is auributable to the anticipated profitability
of the vperation of coffec shops.

The Group recognised the contingent liabilities of approximately HK$1.000,000 in respect of
liquidated damages tor an alleged breach of a wholesale food supply contract.

Pacific Coffee contributed in its 10-month period HK3179.5 million and HK$18.8 millien o the
Group's revenue and profit before tax for the year respectively.
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If the acquisition had been completed on Ist April. 2005, the Group's revenue [or the year would
have been HKS$859 million. and profit for the year would have been HK$39.8 million. This proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of

operations of the Group that actually would have heen achieved had the acquisition been completed on st

April. 2005, nor is it intended 1o he a projection of future profits.

35,

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SKEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposc. the Group is organised into three divisions. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. In prior year, the Group was
orpanised into four divisions. which were computer and business machines. network solution and
telecommunication system, technical and maintenance services and investment in securities and
others. Due 1o the entry into a new business. the food and beverage market and the streamline of its

existing business. the Group reorganises s business activities inte three divisions. Segment

information axbout these businesses is presented below. Comparative figures have been restated o

conform with the current year’s presentation.

Turnover and resulis
Year ended 315t March. 2000

TURNOVER

RESULTS
Segment resulis

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporile income
Interest income

Finance costs

Protit before taxation
Income tax expenses

Profit for the vear

Computer
and
information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage and others  Consolidated
HKS 000 HKS 00t HKS'000 HKS$'000
549011 1794069 103.265 831.745
18.352 18.794 5.734 42 880
(s.611)
5.812
1.653
(3.906)
40.828
(3.862)
36.966
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Turnover and results
Year ended 315t March, 2005

Computer

and
information Investments
communication  in securities

technology and others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ G000
(Restated)
TURNOVER 574,860 112,248 687,108
RESULTS
Segment results 1,546 1,349 2,895
Unallocated corporate expenses {445)
[nterest income 269
Share of results of an associate (826) - (826)
Finance costs H
Profit before taxation 1,892
[ncome tax expenses (339)
Profit for the year 1.553
R

The Group has no inter-segment sales for the two years ended 31st March, 2006.

Assets and liabilities
As at 3ist March, 2006

Computer
and
information Investments
communication Food and  in securities
technology heverage and others Consolidated
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3 000 HK§ 000
ASSETS
Segment assets 146,579 254.634 156,358 357.571
Unallocated corporate assets 73.261
Consolidated total assets 630,832
S
LLIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 69,548 17,878 - 87.826
Unallocated corporate liabilities 131,730
Consolidated total liabilities 219,556
N

—0g _




APPENDIX 11

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Assets and liabilities
As ar 3151 March, 2005

ASSETS

Segment assets

Amount due from an associate
Unallocated corporate asscts

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidited rotal liabilities

Other information
Year ended 315t March, 20006

Capital additions
Depreciation

Impairment loss on available-for-sale

investments

Loss {gain) on disposal of property,

plant and cquipment
Write-down of inventories

Computer

and

information

communication

technology

HKS 000

135.101

379

70480
Computer
and
information

communication Food and

technology heverage

HKS 000 HKS 000

8.035 149,975

4,775 10,567

198 686

1.000 -

- 100 -

Investments
in securities
and others
HKS (000

238,004

[nvestments
in securities
and others
HKS'000

48
459

2.460

(1.235)

Consolidated
HKS$ 000
(Restated)

373,165
379
86.911

460.455

70.480
11.439

81.919

Cansolidated
HK$000

158,658
153,801

2,466

(351)
1.000
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Other informution
Year ended 31st March, 2005

Computer

and
information Investments
communication  in securities

technology and others  Consolidated

HK3'000 HKS 000 HK$'000

(Restated)

Allowance of doubtiul debts 955 - 935
Capital additions 5.004 309 6.063
Depreciation 4.208 138 4.346
Impairment loss on invesiment securities - 560 560
Loss on disposal of property. plant and cquipment 450} - 450
Write-down of inventories 318 - 518

Geographical segmentis

The Group™s operations in food and beverage business are carried out in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Mainland China  whereas  its operations  in the compuoter and  information
communication technology business are carricd out in Hong Kong. Thaifand and Mainland China.
The trading of investments in securities is carried out in Hong Kong. The following is an uanalysis of
the Group’s turnover by geographical market;

Turnover by geographical market

2006 2005
HKS'000 Y% HK$ 000 %
Hong Kong 746747 89 607,118 88
Thailand 006.284 8 69.028 10
Singapore 15,730 el - -
Ohhers 2,984 1 1(L962 2
831,745 100 687,108 100

The fellowing is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and additions 1o
property. plant and equipment and intangible assets analysed by geographical area in which the assets
are located:

Additions to properties,

Carrying amounts plant and equipment
of segment assets and intangible assets
2006 2005 2006 20035

HK$ 000 % HEK3 000 % HKZF 000 % HK$000 %o
Hong Kong 558,891 89 400,498 87 153,444 97 5.036 82
Thailand 51.977 8 51.551 11 909 ] 1.006 17
Singapore 9.307 | - - 3149 1 - -
Others 10.657 2 8.406 2 1.156 1 21 1
630832 100 460455 100 158.658 100 6.063 100
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36. DIRECTORS® AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company are as follows:

2000
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
Directors’ other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3'000
Excentive Directors:
Miss Lily Chow - 1.212 91 1,303
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
Mr Shinichi Yonehara 120 - - 120
Mr Wu King Cheong 120 - - 120
Mr Kwong Man Sing 120 - — 120
360 1,212 91 1.663
2005
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
Dircctors’ other scheme
fees benefits contributions Total
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000
Executive Director:
Miss Lily Chow - 1.212 8 1,220
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
Mr Shinichi Yonehara 120 - - 120
Mr Wu King Cheong 120 - - 120
Mr Kwong Man Sing 60 - - 60
300 1,212 8 1,520

Except for the directors’ fees paid to each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, no other
emoluments were paid or payable to the Independent Non-executive Directors during the two ycars ended
3ist March, 2006.

In addition to the directors’” emoluments disclosed above, Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Fung Pak Kwan,
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang. Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Mr Kan Ka Hon, Directors of the Company received
remuncration totalling HK$20,074.000 (2005 HK$16.621,000) from the Cempany’s ultimate holding
company in respect of their services provided to the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries including
the Group.

The amounts paid by the ultimate holding company have not been altocated between the services of

the directors as Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and their services to the ultimate holding
company and its other subsidiarics.
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The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31st March. 2006 included one
Director (2005: one Director), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2005: four) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

Performance based bonus 349 -
Salarics and other benefits 3,804 3,197
Retirernent benefit scheme contributions 158 181
4,311 3,378

The emoluments of these four highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

Number of individuals

2006 2005

Bands
Nil = HK$1,000,000 2 3
HKS$1.,000,00]1 — HK$1.500.000 I 1
HKS$1.500.001 - HK$2,000,000 I -
4 4

37.  IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND TRADEMARK

As explained in note 35, the Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting
segment information. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and trademark with indefinite useful
lives set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively have been allocated 10 a single CGU, “food and beverage™.

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, management of the Group determined that there has been
no impairment of its CGU containing the goodwill or the trademark.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
caleulation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
four-year period and the cash flows beyond the four-year period arc extrapolated using diminishing growth
rates from 10% and a discount rate of 12%. These growth rates are based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key
assumption for the value-in-use caleulations is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on the
CGU’s past performance and management’s expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonable possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of the CGU to cxceed its recoverable amount.

38. CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31st March. 2006, certain properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$7,605,000 (2003:
HKS$8,163.000) were mortgaged o secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas subsidiary.
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39.  OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

2006 2005

HKS 000 HK$'000

Within one year 51.269 3.655
In the second (o fifth year inclusive 63,969 83
115.238 3.738

Operating leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term ranging from two to three
YEUrs.

The operating lease rentals of certain coffee shops of the Group are determined based on the
turnover of the coffee shops should such amounts be higher than the minimum guaranteed rental.

The Group as lessor

All the investment properties were leased out for @ period of three years and the Group did not
have any renewal options given to the lessee. The future payments receivable by the Group with one
year under non-cancellable operating leases umounted to HK$292.000 (2005: HK$360.000).

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme™) was adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a
resolution passed on 20th September, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the participants with the
oppertunity to acguire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its sharcholders as u
whole. The Scheme will expire on 19th September. 2012.

The total pumber of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitied to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
shareholders™ approval of the Scheme {the “Scheme Mandate Limit™} or. if such 10% limit is refreshed. al
the date of shareholders” approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the cxercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitled to cxceed 19 of the shares of thc
Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company's and CIHL's shareholders. Each grant of
options to any director. chief executive or substantial sharcholder must be approved by Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial sharcholder
or any Independent Non-executive Director or any ol their respective associates would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon excrcise of options already granted and to be granted in
excess of (.1% of the Company's issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5.000.000 in the
i2-month period up to the date of grant, such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s and
CIHL's shareholders.

Options gramted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant. upon payment of HK$1 per
grant. An option may be exercised in accordance with the werms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors which shall not be later than 10
years from the date of grant. The exercise price is determincd by the Directors of the Company, and will
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not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and the nominal value.

No options have been granted under the Scheme,
41, RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit of its staff in Hong
Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong. the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme™) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme™) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets ol the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees, Employees who were members of the QRSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching 1o the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after Ist December. 2000 are required 0 join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group centributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs at a
maximum of HK$1.004) to the Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employces al rate of 5%, and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on Lhe length of service with the Group.

Arrangements for staff retirement benefits of overseas employees vary from country to country and
are made in accordance with local regulations and customs,

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The amount of
forfeited contributions wtilised in this manner during the year was HK$201.000 (2005: HK3206.,000). At
31st March, 2006. the total amount of forfeited contributions. which arose upon employees lcaving the
ORSO Schemc and which are available to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was HK$59.000
(2005 HK$70,000). At 31st March, 2006, contributions of HK$555.000 (2005: HK$272.000) were due in
respect of the reporting period and were paid over to the QRSO Scheme in April. 2006.

42.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions with CIHL and its subsidiaries and the Company’s associate
regarded as related parties for the purpose of HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ issued by the HKICPA
are as follows:

(a)  On 28th March. 2005. the Company rencwed the management agreement with Chevalier (HK)
Limited {"CHKL™), a wholly-owned subsidiury of CIHL, for the provision of company
sceretarial, accounting. electronic data processing. personnel and property management services
by CHKL to the Group in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2006 at a management fee
calculated at the rate of 0.5% of the annual turnover of the Group excluding those of its
overseas subsidiaries. Management fees paid to CHKL during the year under this agreement
amounted to HK$4.005.000 (2005: HK3$2,775,000). The management agreement expired on
28th March. 2006 and has been renewed for a further term of one year.

(b)  During the year. the Group sold computer equipment and business machines and provided
maintenance services to whelly-owned subsidiarics of CIHL totalling HK$10,103.000 (2005:
HK$10,241.,000).

(c) During the year, the Group paid rentals determined with reference to market amounting to

HK$4,305,000 (2005: HK$3.828.000) 10 wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL. for the use of
their premises by the Group.
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(dy  During the year. the Group paid storage and delivery charges amounting to HK$158.000 (2005:
HEK$2.054.000) and HKSNI1 (2005 HK$735.000). respectively, to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CIHL, to cover its costs for serviees provided to the Group.

(¢)  The Group made advances totalling HK$1.366.000 {2005: repaid HK31.304.000) to an
associate, Full provision of approximately HK$1.745,000 was made on the outstanding amount
due at 31st Mareh. 2006 (2005; provision of HK$1.140.0000,

(f}  The remuneration paid and payable 1o the directors and other members of key management
during the year was disclosed in note 36, The remuncration of directors and any key
management is determined by the remuncration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

The ocutstanding balance due from CIHL and its subsidiaries arising from the above transactions

mentioned in {a) to (d)y and payment of recurring expenses on behall of the Group as at 31st March, 2006
amounted to HK$3.083.000 (2005: HKS1.477.000).7
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C. UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006

The following is the reproduction of the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group contained in pages 1 to |1 of the Company’s 2006-2007 interim report:

“CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
Turnover 3 381,879 428.754
Cost of sales (259,329 (335.019)
Gross profit 122,550 93,735
Other income 4 4,940 7.850
Selling and distribution costs (102,256) (67,940)
Administrative expenses (3.582) (3,011
Other expenses (999) (5,553)
Operating profit 20,653 25,081
Share of result of an associate - 45)
Finance costs (2.541) (1,505)
Profit before taxation 3 18,112 23,531
Income tax expenscs o] (2,448) (2,281
Profit for the period attributable 10 equity
holders of the Company 15,664 21,250
Dividend 7 4,754 5,141
Earnings per share 8 9.11 cents 12.40 cents
Interim dividend per share 2.5 cents 3.0 cents
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 30th Seprember, 2006

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Trademark

Interest in an assaciate

Available-for-sale investments

Investments at fair value through profit
or loss

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Amount due from ultimate holding
company

Amounts due from customers for contract
work

Tax recoverable

Investments at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Creditors, bills payables, deposits and
accruals

Amounts due to customers for contract
work

Deferred service income

Dividend payable

Provision for taxation

Bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes

10

i

Unaudited Audited
30th September, 31st March,
2006 2006
HK3$ 000 HK$'000
7,175 7.120
62,784 55,895
2,103 2,192
82,392 82,392
108.000 108,000
435 -
18,480 10,020
49,507 49,588
330,876 315,207
78,823 66,991
112,503 100,164
1,075 1,756
141 342

191 062
74,742 73,279
- 32
102,669 72.399
370,144 315,625
92,652 77.045
137 264
18,391 20,420
8,568 -
840 942
52,000 52,000
172,588 150.671
197,556 164,954
528,432 480,161
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Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
Minority interests

Total Equity

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Deferred taxation

Total equity and non-current liabilities
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Unaudited Audited

30th September, 31st March,
2006 2006

Notes HK§ 000 HK$ 000
I2 95,078 85,678
369,814 325,422

464,892 411,100

184 176

465,076 411,276

43.000 49,000

20,356 19,885

63,356 68,885

528,432 480,161
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006 (unaudited)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Capilal  Exchange
Shure Share Capital redemption fluctuation  Retained Minority
vapital  premium reserve reserve reseryve prolits Total  interests Toal

Note HES'000  HKS000 HKSCOG  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000 HESOI0  HKS0G0  HES60

AC Ist April, 2005 85.078 223434 18.060) 14 1.657 52432 81,275 175 381450

Exchange difference arising

on transfalion of

financial statements of

foreign operations

directly recogmised in

equity - - - - (513) - (343) () (533
Profit tor the period - - - - - 21.250 21,250 - 21.250

Total recognised income
and expense for the

puriod - - - - {543) 21.250 20,707 (10 20.697
Final dividend for 20003

paid - - - - - (1L713) (L7 - (1.713)
At 30th Sepicmber. 2003 83.678 223434 18.060 14 1114 71,964 400.269 165 400,434
At Ist April. 2006 85.678 223,43 15.060 19 1.370 K254 4100 176 411276

Exchunge difference arising
on translation of
financial statlements of
forcign operations
directly recognised in

eyuity - - - 2.050 - 2050 H 2058
Profit for the period - - - - - 15.6064 15.664 - 153.664
Tetal recognised income

and expense for the

period - - - 2030 15,6064 17.714 3 17.722
Final dividend relaling 1o

2006 7 - - - (8.568) (8.568) - {8,568}
Lssue of shaee capical 9.400 35,1446 - - - 11630 - 33,646

AL 3ih Sepember, 206 95.078 258.680 18,060 14 3420 89,640 464.892 184 165,076
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September. 2006

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

20006 2005

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Net cash from operating activities 15.445 65.693
Net cash used in investing activitics (24.028) (239.035)
Net cash from financing activities 38,640 104.839
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30.063 (68,503)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 72,399 181,330
Effect of foreign exchange rute changes 207 (312)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 102.669 112515

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash cquivalents 102,669 112,515
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NOTES
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

I. Busis of preparation and accounting policies

The condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (*HKAS") 34 “Imerim Financial Reporting”
issucd by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™).

2. Principal accounting policies

The condensed financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as appropriate.

The accounting policies used in the condensed financial statements are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the annual financial statcments of the Group for the year ended 3ist March, 2006
except as described below.

In prior years, fixed assets of machinery, tools, equipment, furniture, fixtures. office equipment and
motor vehicles were depreciated on reducing balance basis at annual charge rate of 20% or 40% with initial
charge of 20%. The directors of the Group have reviewed the vsage of these assets and considered it
appropriate to depreciate them on a straight line basis over their usetul lives trom 5 to 0 years. This
change in accounting estimate has no significant impact o the Group’s depreciation charged to the income
statement for the current period.

In the curremt period. the Group has applied. for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSs™) issued by the HKICPA that have become effective. The application of the new HKFRSs has no
matcrial effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Greup has also considered the new standards, amendments and interpretations that may be
applicable to the Group. The Group has not yet early adopted the following new standard. amendment and
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these new standard, amendment and interpretations wilt have no material impact on the
results and tinancial positions of the Group.

HKAS | (Amendment}) Capital disclosures'

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures'
HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2°

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives®
HK(IFRIC) — INT [0 Interim financial reporting and impairment*

Effective for unnual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007.

ta

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist June, 20006.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November, 2006,
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3. Segment information

An unalysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit by business segment and
turnover by geographical segment is as follows:—

(a) By business segment
For the six months cnded 30th September, 2006

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and  in securities
technology beverage and others Consolidated
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK3'000 HK3 000
TURNOVER 259,798 115,963 6.118 381.879
RESULTS
Segment results 5.999 8.149 8,392 22.540
Unallocated corporate
expenses (2.543)
Unallocated corporite income 164
Interest income 492
Operating profit 20.653
Finance costs {2.541)
Profit before taxation 18.112
Income tax expenses (2.448)

Profit for the period
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 15.664
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b)

For the six months ended 30th September, 2005

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and  io securilies
technology beverage and others  Consolidated
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000

TURNOVER 296,408 72.5H1 5Y9.835 428.754
RESULTS
Secgment results 9.145 7.798 5.302 22.245
Unallocated corporue

exXpenses (2.594)
Unallocated corporate income 4,392
Interest income 1.038
Operating profit 25.081
Share of result of an associate (45) - - {45)
Finance costs (1.503)
Profit before taxation 23.531
Income tax expenses (2.281)
Profit for the period

attributable 10 equity

holders of the Company 21,250
By geographical segment

Turnover

Hong Kong
Thailand
Others

Six months ended
30th Sepiember,

2006 2005
HKS 006 HK$ 000
331.924 387.129
37,230 33.333
12.725 8.292
381.874 428.754
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4. Other income

Included in other income are;
[nterest income
Gross rental income from propertics less outgoings
Unrealised fair value gain of investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Profit on disposal of properties for sales
Gain on foreign exchange contracts

5. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
Cost of goods sold
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

6. Encome tax expenses

The charge/(credit) comprises:
Current taxation
Hong Kong
Overseas
Deferred taxation

Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK§'000
492 1,038

220 275
3.770 -

- 4,392

- 1.696

Six months ended
30th Scptember,

2006 2005
HK§' 000 HK§'000
217.515 235,996
10,356 6.741
31,430 20.127
61.476 52.016

Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005
HK3'000 HK$ 000
1,539 1.962
439 399

470 (80)
2.448 2.281

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the

estimated assessable profits less available wax relief for losses brought forward.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local

legislation on the estimated assessable profits.
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7. Dividend

Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005
HES 000 HK3 000

Interim dividend
HK2.5 cents per share (2005: HK3.0 cents per share) 4,754 5.141

On 8th December. 2006, the Board of Directors declared an imerim dividend of HK2.5 cents per
ordinary share. The interim dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in this condensed consolidated
balance sheet, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained carnings for the year ending 31st March,
2007.

A 2006 final dividend of HKS cents (2005 HK1 cent) per ordinary share, totalling HK$8.368.000
was approved at the annual general meeting held on 28th Sepiember, 2006 and paid in October 2006, Tt has
been reflected as an appropriation of retained carnings for the six months ended 30th September. 2006.

8. Earnings per sharc

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the profit for the period of HK$15.664.000 (2005:
HKS$21.250,0007 and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares ol 171922446 (2005:
171.355.871) in issue during the period.

No diluted carnings per share are presented as the Compuny had no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the two periods ended 30th September, 2005 and 2006.

9. Property, plant and equipment

For the six months ended 30th September. 2006, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
HK$16.956.000 (HK$35.547.000 for the six months ended 30th September, 2005) and dispuosed of property.
plant and equipment with 3 net book value of HK3368.000 (HK$989.000 for the six months ended 30th
September. 2005}).

10. Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$53.920,000 (31st March,
2006: HK$56,626.000).

The ageing analysis of trade debtors net of allowance of doubtful debts is as lollows,

As at 30th As at 31st

September, March,

2006 2006

HES$'000 HKS 000

0-60 days 47,155 49,348
61-90 days 2,518 2,533
Over 90 days 4,249 4,745
Total 53.920 56,626
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The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The
average credit period granted for trade debtors was 60 days except for sales of food and beverage at coffee

shops which are mainly on cash basis.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other debtors approximate 1o their fair values.

11, Creditors, bill payables, deposits and accruals

Included in creditors, bill payables, deposits and accruals are trade creditors and bills payable of

HK$35.053.000 (31st March, 2006: HK$34,416,000).

The ageing analysis of trade crediters and bills payables is as follows:

0-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

Toual

As at 30th As at 3ist

September, March,
2006 2006

HKS 006 HK3 000
32,398 31,166

690 333

1.965 2917
35.0583 34,416

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other creditors and bills payables approximate to their

lair values.

12.  Share capital

As at As at
30th September, 2006 A1st March, 2({6
Number of Number of
Ordinary Nominal Ordinary Nominal
Shares of Value Shares of Value
HK$0.5 HK$0.5
each HK$ 600 each HK$000
Authorised:
At beginning and end of the
period 240,000,000 120.000 240001000 120,000
[ssued and fubly paid:
At beginning of the period 171.355.871 85.678 171,355,871 85.678
[ssue of shares 18,800,000 9,400 - —
At end of the period 190.155.871 95,078 171,355,871 85.678
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13.  Operating lease
{a}  The Group as lessee

Af 30th September, 2006, the Group had fotal future aggregate minimum lcase payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

As at 30th As at 31st

September, March,

2006 2006

HK3$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 61.201 51,269
In the second te {ifth year inclusive 65.389 63.969
126,590 115,238

Operating leases are negotisted and rentals are fixed for lease term ranging from (wo to three
years,

The operating lease rentals of certain coffee shops of the Group are deicrmined based on the
wrnover of the coffee shops should such amounts be higher than the minimum guaranteed rental. The
shove amount of commitment has only included the minimum guaranteed remal.

(h) The Group as lessor

All the investment properties were leased out for a period of three years and the Group did not
have any renewal options given to the leasees. The future mintmum lease receivable by the Group
with one year under non-cancellable operating feases amounted to HK$301.000 (31st March, 2006:
HK$292.000).

14.  Subsequent event

On 25th November. 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Sinochina Pacific Limited to
acquire, in two tranches, a total of 100 shares in Sinochina Enterprises Limited ("SEL"™). representing the
entire issued share capital of SEL. The twe tranches involve the acquisition of 49 und 51 ordinary shares in
SEL constituting respective 449 and 51% of the entire issued sharc capital of SEL. The total consideration
of the two tranches shall in any event not exceed HK$200 mitlion in aggregate. The consideration shall be
satisfied in cash and financed by the internal resources of the Group.

SEL is engaging in the business of operation of restaurants and other food and beverage outlets in
Hong Kong.

Further details of the event were contained in the Company's anncuncement dated Ist December,
2006."

D. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse

change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 March 2000, the date to
which the latest audited consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up.
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E. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial review and employees policies of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2006

As at 31 March 2006, the Group’s total net asset attributable o equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$411 million (2005: HK$378 million), an increase of HK$33
million or 9% when compared with 2003.

Total debt to equity ratio was 24.6% (2005: 0.03%) and net debt to equity ratio was nil
(2005: Nil), which are expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net
barrowings respectively, over the total net asset of HK$411 million (2005: HKS$378 million).

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$101
million (2005: HK$121,000). Cash and deposit at bank including structured deposits
amounted to HK$122 million (2005: HK$181 million) and there are no net borrowings for
the two years.

Finance costs for the vear amounted to HK$3.9 million (2005; HK$1.000). The
increase is due to the increase of banking loans of over HK$100 million to finance mainly
the acquisition of Pacific Coffee,

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management, To
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong
Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider
new {inancing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group employed approximately 846 full time staff globally.
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$112 million for the year ended 31 March
2006. The remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job,
market trend, company performance and individual performance, Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and
cmployees’ share option scheme,

Financial review and employees policy of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2006

As at 30 September 2006, the Group’s total net assets attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$465 million (HK$411 million as at 31 March 2006).

As at 30 September 2006, total debt to equity ratio was 20.4% (24.6% as at 3! March
2006) and net debt to equity ratio was nil (Nil as at 31 March 2006), which are expressed as
a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings respectively, over the total
net assets of HK$465 million (HK$411 million as at 31 March 2006).

As at 30 September 2006, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$95

million (HK$101 million as at 31 March 2006). Cash and deposit at bank including
structured deposits amounted to HK$152 million (HK$122 million as at 31 March 2006) and
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there are no net borrowings as at 30 September 2006 (Nil as at 31 March 2006). The
improvement in cash position was mainly attributable to the share placement of 18.8 million
new shares in August 2006, bringing in net proceeds after expenses of HK$44.6 million for
the expansion of food and beverage business and for the general working capital of the
Group.

The Group adopis conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong
Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements arc frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans. the Group will consider
new financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

As at 30 September 2006, the Group employed approximately 850 full time staff
globally. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$61 million for the period under
review. The remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of
job, market trend, company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and
employecs’ share option scheme.

F. PROSPECTS

Outlook for the computer and information communication technology business remains
uncertain as margin continues to be under the pressurc of market competition. That said,
Hong Kong’s economy is expanding at a brisk pace while interest rates remain relatively
low with the added prospect of downward adjustments as 2007 appears on the horizon.
Furthermore, the labor market is improving and this will spur consumption, hence
investment in IT expenditure is expected to see moderate growth. Never complacent, the
Group will continually seek ways to bring added value to customers, whether in the form of
comprehensive solutions or reliable high-performance products and services.

For the stylish food and beverage business, in particular, Pacific Coffee, therc are a
number of initiatives in the pipeline. In Hong Kong. small or unprofitable stores facing high
rental increases will be relocated. In Beijing and Shanghai, the Group will establish stores in
more retail focused shopping areas and tourist locations so as to improve Pacific Coffee’s
brand visibility and profitability. In Singapore, the newly opened Vivo City store has already
earncd highly positive feedback from customers and become a new flagship. Not satisfied,
management of Pacific Coffee will focus on building a strong regional team with local talent
1o ensure long-term growth.

With Igor’s creative food and beverage concepts as well as Pacific Coffee’s strong
retail and brand presence, the Group is well positioned to continue capturing a growing
share of the burgeoning lifestyle-based food and beverage market in Hong Kong, the PRC
and other parts of Asia.
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A. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is an illustrative and pro forma statement of asscts and liabilities of the
Enlarged Group which has been prepared based on the unaudited condensed consolidated
balance sheet of the Group as set out in the published interim report for the six months
ended 30 Scptember 2006 after making pro forma adjustments as set out in note 3 below.
This unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group has been
prepared to illustrate the eftects of the Acquisition, as if the Acquisition had taken place on
30 Scptember 2006. It has been presented in.a manner consistent with both the format and
accounting policies adopted by the Group. It has been prepared for illustrative purposes only
and because of its hypothetical nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial
position of the Enlarged Group had the Acquisition been completed as at 30 September 2006
or at any future date.

Unadjusted
statement of
assets and
liabilities of
the Group Pro forma adjustments Pro
as at forma
30 September SEL Other pro forma Enlarged
2006 Group adjustments Group
HK%'000 HK$ 000 HK§$'000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000
Note 2 Note 3(i}  Nete 3(ii)  Note 3(iii}
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 62.784 17.761 - - 80.545
Investment properties 7,175 - - - 7175
Prepaid lease payments 2,103 950 - 300 3,353
Interest in an associate 435 1.462 - - |.897
Gooadwill 82.392 - - 171,943 254335
Intangible assets 108.000 - - 9.940 117.940
Available-for-sale investmcents 18.480 - - - 18.480
Investment at fair value through
profit or loss 49,507 - - - 49,507
Rental deposits 14,217 3.490 - - 17,707
Circulatory inventories - 1113 - - 113
Deferred income tax asscts - 336 - - 136
(345093 _.352.388
Current assets
Inventories 78,823 3.103 - - 81.926
Debters. deposits and
prepayments 98,286 8,650 - - 106,936
Amount due {rom ultimate
holding company 1,075 - ~ - 1.075
Amounts due from customers for
contract work 141 - - - 141
Tax recoverable 191 118 - - 309
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Unadjusted
statement of
assets and
liahilities of
the Group
as at
30 September
2006
HKS$ 000
Note 2
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss 74,742
Bank balances and cash
equivalents 102,669
355,97
Total assets 701.020
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 43.000
Obligation under finance lease -
Deferred income tax liabilitics 20,356
63356
Current liabilities
Creditors, bills payable, deposits
and accruals §2.652
Amounts due to customers for
contract work i37
Deferred service income 18.391
Dividend payable 8.568
Provision for taxition 340
Current portion of obligation
under finance lease -
Bank borrowings 52,000
__ 172,588
Total liabilities N 235941_1
Net assets 463,076
Net current assets/{liabilities) 183.339
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Pro forma adjustments

SEL Other pro forma
Group adjustments
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note 3{i) Nore 3(ii)  Note 3(iii)

13.134 (200.000) -

2117 - -
18 - -

19.035 -

5,356 - -
1101 - -

78 ) - -
2.603 - -

Pro
forma
Enlarged
Group
HKS'000

74.742

(84.197)

180.932

733320

45117

22,148

[11.687

137
18.391
14.124

1.941

78
54.603

200.961

465,076

(20.029)
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Notes to the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group:

1

The Acquisition will be cxecuted in two phases pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. First Closing
involves the acquisition of 4 49% interest of SEL and Second Closing involves the acquisition of the
remaining 51% interest of SEL. After First Closing and before Second Closing, SEL Group will be
accounted for as an associated company of the Company in accordance with HKFRS. After Secend
Closing, SEL Group will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
Agreememt, the Company will be required o advance the Purchaser’s loan and the Additional
Borrowing solely tor capital expenditure upon the request of SEL Group at any time after First
Closing.

The unadjusted statement of assets and liabilities of the Group is extracted from the unaudited
condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30 September 2006 set out in the published
interim report for the six months ended 30 September 2006,

Details of the pro forma adjustments are set out as follows:

i The balances are cxtracted from the balance sheet of SEL Group as at 30 November 2006,
which is audited by Li, Tang, Chen & Co., certified public accountants, and is set out in the
accountunts’ report of SEL Group in Appendix | to this Circular.

ti In accordance with the terms of the Agreement. the final consideration is determined based on
the actual Normalized 2006 EBITDA, 2007 ERITDA and 2008 EBITDA and is subject to
adjustments in the cvent of a loss making year or a significant disruption in the Hong Kong
cconomy or an accelerated Second Closing. It is assumed that the payment of the consideration
is financed by the Group's internal resources and available banking facilities. The directors of
the Company consider that they are not in a position 1o make a best estimate of the final
consideration at the moment because it is based on the future performance of SEL Group.
Accordingly, this pro forma adjustment represents consideration payable of HK$200 million,
which is the maximum total consideration to be paid for the Acquisition as set out in the
Agreement.

iii Recognition of fair value adjustments and corresponding estimated deferred 1ax liabilities to
SEL’s net identifiable assets and liabilities and goodwill, which illustrates the aggregate effect
of First Closing and Second Closing as if the two closings had taken place together on 30
September 2006. The fair value adjustments represent the recognition of an intangible asset
ascribed to certain trade names of SEL Group and revaluation of land and buildings, which are
based on valuation performed by independent valuers. The goodwill of approximately HK$172
million represents the excess of the maximum consideration as set out in notc 3(ii) above over
the fair value of the net assets of SEL Group including the deferred tax liabilities recognised
as aforesaid,

No adjustments have been made to reflect any results or transactions of the Group and SEL Group
entered into subsequent to 30 September 2006 and 30 November 2000 respectively.

The Company will assess the fair value of the assets and liabilitics of SEL Group at cach of the First
Closing and Second Closing. The amounts of the fair valuc of the assets and liabilities of SEL Group
at the First Closing and Second Clesing. including intangible asscts, delerred tax liabilities and
goodwill, will be differem from these amounts as presented above,
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B. REPORT FROM ACCOUNTANTS ON THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is the text of a report from PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, in respect of the unaudited pro forma financial information of the
Enlarged Group for the purpose of incorporation in this circular.

PRICEMATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BERKEGSTMSHAR PricewaterhouseGoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

REPORT FROM ACCOUNTANTS ON
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
TO THE DIRECTORS OF CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

We report on the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of Chevalier
iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiarics (together referred to as the
“Group™) set out on pages 121 to 123 under the heading of “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information of the Enlarged Group” (the “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information™} in
Appendix N1 to the Company’s circular dated 7 February 2007 (the “Circular™) in
connection with the proposed acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (the “Acquisition”). The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has
been prepared by the directors of the Company, for illustrative purposes only, to provide
information about how the Acquisition might have affected the relevant financial information
of the Group. The basis of preparation of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is
sct out on pages 121 to 123 of the Circular.

Respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company and accountants

It is the responsibility solely of the directors of the Company to prepare the Unaudited
Pro Forma Financial Information in accordance with rule 4.29 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™)
and Accounting Guideline 7 “Preparation of Pro Forma Financial Information for Inclusion
in Investment Circulars™ issued by th¢ Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“the “HKICPA™). It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by rule 4.29(7) of
the Listing Rules, on the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information and to report our
opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Investment
Circular Reporting Engagements 300 “Accountants’ Reports on Pro Forma Financial
Information in Investment Circulars” issued by the HKICPA. Our work, which involved no
independent cxamination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted primarily
of comparing the unadjusted statement of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30
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September 2006 with the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at
30 September 2006, considering the evidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the
Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information with the directors of the Company.

We planned and performed our work so us to obtain the information and explanations
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give rcasonable
assurance that the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been properly compiled
by the directors of the Company on the basis stated, that such basis is consistent with the
accounting policies of the Group and that the adjustments are appropriate for the purpose of
the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information as disclosed pursuant to rule 4.29(1) of the
Listing Rules.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is for illustrative purpose only, based
on the judgements and assumptions of the directors of the Company, and because of its
hypothetical nature. it does not provide any assurance or indication that any event will take
place in the future and may not be indicative of the financial position of the Group as at 30
September 2006 or any future date.

Opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been properly compiled by
the directors of the Company on the basis stated;

(b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and

(¢) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the Unaudited Pro Forma
Financial Information as disclosed pursuant to rule 4.29{1) of the Listing Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong. 7 February 2007
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APPENDIX III FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

C. INDEBTEDNESS OF THE ENLARGED GROUP
(a) The Group
Borrowings

As at the close of business on 30 November 2006, being the latest
practicable date for the purpose of this indebtedness statement, the Group had
outstanding unsecured bank borrowings of approximately HK$110.9 million.

(b) SEL Group
Indebtedness of SEL Group
Borrowings

As at the close of business on 30 November 2006, being the latest
practicable date for the purpose of this indebtedness statement, SEL Group had
secured bank borrowings of approximately HK$2.520.000 and unsecurcd
borrowings of approximately HK$2,296,000. The unsecured borrowings included
bank loans of approximately HK$2.200.000 and obligations under finance leases
of approximately HK$96.000.

Pledge of assets

At the close of business on 30 November 2006. SEL Group had pledged its
lcasehold  buildings with aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$2.534.000 and certain property, plant and equipment to secure the general
banking facilities granted to SEL Group.

Disclaimer

Saved as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group and SEL
Group did not. at the close of business on 30 November 2006, have any outstanding
loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued. bank overdrafts, charges or
debentures, mortgages, loans, or other similar indebtedness or any finance lcase
commitments, hire purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances {other than
normal trade bills). acceptance credits or any guarantees or other material contingent
liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that there have been no material changes in (he
indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the Enlarged Group since 30 November 2006.

D. WORKING CAPITAL
The Directors are of the opinion that after taking into account of the Group’s internal
resources and the present available banking facilities, the Enlarged Group has sufficient

working capital for its present requircments following the Completion, that is for at least the
next 12 months from the date of this circular.
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APPENDIX 1V GENERAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purposc of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors jointly and
severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular with regard to the Company and confirm. having made all reasonable enquiries and
that to the best of their knowledge and belief. there are no other facts. the omission of
which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
i Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chiet executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO). or which were required (o be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
pursuant to S$352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares (long position)

Number of Shares Approximate
Personal  Corporate percentage
Name of Dircctors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner GRIS854 107.822.933*% 114,638,787 60.29
and interest of
controtled
corporation
FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2.580.000 1.36
KUOGK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2.400.000 - 2,400,000 1.26
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 - 451,200 0.24
Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 6 - 600 0.00032

* Dr. CHOW Yei Ching (“Dr. Chow”) had notified the Company that under the SFO. he was
deemed to be interested in 107,822,933 Shares which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow
beneficially owned 150.356,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximatelv 53.97% of the
issued share capital of CIHL. Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested in these Shares under
the SFO and these Shares were same as those Shares disclosed in the section "Substantial
Shareholders' interests in securities™ below.




APPENDIX IV GENERAL INFORMATION

(b) Interests in associated corporation — shares (long position)

Number of ordinary shares  Approximate

Associated Personal percentage

Name of directors corporation Capacity interests Total of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 150,356,359 150.356.359 53.97
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93479 0.03
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98.216 98.216 0.04
KAN Kua Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 19,0440 0.01
Shinichi YONEHARA ~ CIHL Beneficial owner 1.671 1,671 6.001

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
tuken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant 10 8352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein: or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ii.  Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to the Dircclors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under 5336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Number of Approximate
Shares held percentage of
Substantial shareholder Capacity {Long position) interest
%}
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 114,638,787 (Notes | and 3) 60.29
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 114,638.787 (Notes 2 and 3) 60.29
CIHL Beneficial owner 107.822.933 (Note 3) 36.70
Chevalier {HK) Limited Beneficial owner 13.471.200 (Note 3) 7.08
Firstland Company Limited  Beneficial owner 13.471.200 {Note 3) 7.08
Chen Wai Wai. Vivien Beneficial owner 18,800,000 (Note 4) 9.89
Crosby Investment [nterest of controlled 18.800.000 (Note 4) 9.89
Holdings Inc. corporation
Nan Fung Resources Interest of controlled 18.800.000 (Note 4) 9.89
Limited carporation
Gentfull [nvestment Beneficial owner 18,800,000 (Note 4) 9.89
Limited
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Nore:

Save

Under the SFO. these Shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal interests of 6.815.854. (i)
corporate interests of 107,822,933 in which Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested.

Under Part XV of the SFQ, Ms Miyakawa Michiko. the spouse of Dr. Chow. was deemed 10 be
interested in the same parcel of 114.638.787 Shares held by Dr. Chow.

These Shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland Company
Limited. a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chevaler
(HK} Limited. Chevalier (HK)} Limited is 2 company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under Part
XV of the SFO, Chevalier (HK) Limited. CIHL, Dr. Chow and his spouse were deemed 10 he
interested in 13,471,200 Shares.,

Ms. Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc.. Nan Fung Resources Limited are
taken to be interested in 8. 806,000 Shares which were held by Gentfull [nvestment Limited.
Gentfull Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources Limited and in turn
wholly owned by Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. which s 100% owned by Ms. Chen Wai
Wai, Vivien.

as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to

the Directors and the chief executives of the Company. no other person had interests or
short positions in the shares. underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or. who were. directly or indirectly, beneficially interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at gencral mectings of any member of the Enlarged Group or in any
options in respect of such capital.

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had an interest in any business
constituting a competing business 10 the Group.

4. OTHER INTERESTS OF THE DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date:

(1)

(1)

none of the Directors had any interest, either direct or indirect, in any assets
which have been, since 31 March 2006, being the date to which the latest
published audited accounts of the Group were made up, acquired or disposed of
by or leased to any member of the Enlarged Group, or are proposed to be
acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Enlurged Group: and

none of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement
entered into by any member of the Enlarged Group which was subsisting as at the
date of this circular and is significant in relation to the business of the Enlarged
Group.

— 129 -




APPENDIX 1V GENERAL INFORMATION

5. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts have been entered into by members of the Entarged Group
within two years preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material:

{a) the share purchase agreement dated 6 April 2005 in relation to the acquisition of
Pacific Coffee;

(b) the escrow agreement dated 20 May 2005 in relation to the acquisition of Pacific
Coffee; and

(c) the Agreement.
6. SERVICE CONTRACT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered, or were proposing
to enter, into any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not expiring
or may not be terminated by the Company within a year without payment of any
compensation {other than statutory compensation).

7.  LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the members of the Enlarged Group was
engaged in any litigation, arbitration of material importance or claim of material importance
pending or threatened against any member of the Enlarged Group.

8. EXPERTS AND CONSENTS

The following arc the qualifications of the experts who have been named in this
circular or have given opinions or advice which are contained in this circular:

Li. Tang, Chen & Co. Certified public accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers Certified public accountants

Each of Li. Tang. Chen & Co. and PricewaterhouscCoopers, has given and has not
withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this circular with the inclusion of its letter and
the reference to its name in the form and context in which it appears.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, both Li, Tang, Chen & Co. and
PricewaterhouseCoopers did not have any shareholding in the Group or any right (whether
tegally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities
in the Group, nor did they have any interest, direct or indirect, in any assets which had,
since 31 March 2006, being the date to which the latest published audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group were made up, been acquired or disposed of by or leased
to the Enlarged Group, or were proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to the
Enlarged Group.
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9. MISCELLANEOUS

(a) The qualified accountant and the secretary of the Company is Mr. Kan Ka Hon,
FCCA. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the UK. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

(b) The registered office of the Company is situated at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda and its principal place of business is situated
at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road. Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

(¢) The Hong Kong branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company is
Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

(d) In the event of inconsistency, the English text of this circular shall prevail over
the Chinese text.

10. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents arc available for inspection during normal business
hours at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre. 8 Wang Hoi Road. Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon. Hong Kong. from the date of this circular up 1o 23 February 2007:

—  the memorandum and bye-laws of the Company,

—  the published audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
two financial years ended 31 March 2006, the text of which is set out in
Appendix Il to this circular;

- the published unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2006, the text of which is set
out in Appendix 1I to this circular:

- the accountants’ report from Li, Tang, Chen & Co. on SEL Group. the text of
which is set out in Appendix I to this circular:

- the leuer from PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the unaudited pro forma
statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group, the text of which is sel
out in Appendix III to this circular:

-  the consent letters from Li. Tang, Chen & Co. and PricewaterhouseCoopers
referred to in the section headed “Experts and consents™ in this appendix; and

- the material contracts referred to in the section headed “Material Contracts” in
this appendix.
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